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Mayor Dan Hollingsworth
Members of the City Council
City of Ruston, Louisiana

Mayor and Members of the City Council:

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended
Seprember 30, 2009. The financial statements were prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
government auditing standards by a firm of Kcensed cextified public accountants. I believe
this report presents comprehensive information about the City’s financial and operating
activities during 2009 that is useful to taxpayers, citizens, and other interested persons.

This report was prepated by the Finance Department and consists of management’s
representadons concerning the finances of the City. Consequeatly, manegement assumes
full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in
this report. To provide a rcasonable basis for making these representations, management of
the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
ptotect the goverament’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absclite assurance that the financial staternents will be free from material
misstatemnent. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

In accordance with the Lawrason Act, the City Council is required to provide for an annual
independent audit of the accounts and financial transactions of the City by a firm of
independent certified public accountants duly licensed to practice in the State of Louisiana.
The accounting firm of Douglas A. Brewer, LLC was selected by the City to conduct its
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annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, ate free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemnents; assessing the accounting
prnciples used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering unqualified opinions that the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, are fairly presented i conformity
with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was patt of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.
The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government’s internal controls and cornpliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal
awards. These reports are available in the City’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, ovetview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of ransmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found imnmediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City of Ruston

The City of Ruston was incorporated in 1898. Itis located in North Central Louisiana at the
cross roads of U.S. Highway 167, Intetstate 20 and U.S. Highway 80, approximately thirty-
five miles south of Arkansas. Ruston is the seat of Lincoln Parish. The current atea of the
City is approximately 21 square miles.

The City of Ruston has been organized under a Mayor — Board of Aldetmen fonn of
government. Thete is a five member board, with each member selected for four year terms
from separate wards of the City. The Mayor is elected at-large for a four-year term, is not a
member of the council, but has veto power over council action.

The City provides a wide range of services including public safety, highways and streets,
sanitation, electric, water, and sewer services, airports, ambulance, recreational activities,
general administration functons and others.

These financial statements present the City of Ruston (the primary government) and its
component units. The component units are included in the City's reporting entity because
of the significance of their operational or financial telationships with the City. Included as
disctetely presented component units is the financial data for the City Judge’s Office and the
City Marshal. They are reported separately within the City’s financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Additonal information on these
legally separate entides can be found in the notes to the financial statemeants.
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Budgetary Control

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control.
The Treasurer’s Office compiles for the Mayor estimates of revenues and requests for
appropriations of the annual budget. Before August 31, the Mayor’s budget is submitted to
the Council for possible revision and zdoption. The Council conducts a public hearing on
the budget, which must be adopted by September 30 to become effective October 1. State
law provides that in no event shall the total appropriations exceed total anticipated revenues
taking into account the estimated surplus or deficit at the end of the current fiscal year.
Budgets may be amended during the year with Council approval

Budgetary control is exercised at the departmental object level, with the exception of salaries,
regular and overtime, which are at the line item level. Formal budgetary integration and
encumbrance accounting are employed as management control devices during the year.

Local economy. Although the local economy has teaken a downturn in economic growth
and development over the past fiscal year, it has not experenced the same severity that the
natonal economy has. Building permit valuations were $22 million for the fiscal year which
was a 25% decrease over the previous fiscal year.

The City of Ruston and Lincoln Parish have expenienced steady population growth from
1970 to 2000 with approximately 3,000 new City residents and nearly 8,000 new parish
residents. The projected growth trends for 2001 through 2009 published by the U.S.
Department of Commerce suggest a slight decrease in population, but this will not be
supported until the 2010 census is conducted.

The Tax Increment Distict continues to create new economic activity for the City and
parish, and the new commercial actvities have increased the sales tax revenue of the City.

Louisiana Tech University is sull a mainstay in the local economy both as the major
employer of the area and as a strong partner in the development efforts of the community.
There are several firms in the university’s business incubator that could become the
foundation for a complete transformation of the local market structure by creating new high
tech industrial activities in the community.

The City of Ruston, Lincoln Parish and Louisiana Tech University continue to enjoy
economic growth and are excited about the future despite the present economic slow down
that the country is experiencing.

Long-term financial planning. Recently, the City has experienced a slight decline in out
largest general revenue source which is sales taxes. In the General Fund, sales tax represents
59% of the revenues and transfers in. Because of the decline on sales taxes and increasing
trends in retirement costs and health insurance, difficulty to balance the budget will exist
now and in the future. Rates have increased in both water and sewer services in order to
provide needed improvements in the infrastructute of the systems.

it



Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle dudng the year was
invested in certificates of deposit, or obligations of the U.S. Treasury. The maturities of the
investments range from 90 days to two years.

The City’s investment policy is to exercise that judgment and care which men of prudence,
discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, Investments are
selected as investments, not for speculation, considering the probable safety of the capital, as
well as the probable income to be derived. Accordingly, deposits are either msured by
federal depository insurance or collateralized. All of the investments held by the City are
classified in the category of lowest risk. State statutes requite that all public funds should be
insured or collateralized. The City’s policy is not to have uninsured/uncollateralized funds
which it controls.

Risk management. The City partially retains the nisk for property, lability, workers
compensation, and general health insurance. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources
are being accumulated in the respective funds to meet potential losses. In addition, vatious
sisk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug free workplace program
with mandatory drug screening for new employees as well as random drug screening for
cutrent eroployees, and pre-employment physicals have been implemented to minimize
accident-related losses. The City has third-party coverages subject to self-insured tetentions
which are more fully described in the notes to the financial statements.

Pension and cother postemployment benefits. Substantially all employees of the City of
Ruston are members of one of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal
Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), Statewide Firefighter’s Retirement
System {SFRS), ot Municipal Police Employees Retitement System of Louisiana (MPERS).
These systems are multiple employer (cost-sharing), public employee retirement systems
(PERS), controlled and administered by separate State appointed board of trustees. The City
of Ruston has no obligation in connection with employee benefits offered through these
plans.

Additional information on the City’s pension arrangements and postemployment benefits
can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire stzff of the Finance Depantment. We would like to express
our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the
preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the City Council for
their unfailing support of excellence in financial reporting and fiscal inteprity.

Sincetrely,
Emmert Gibbs Ashley Burton
Treasuter Controller
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Douglas A, Brewer, LLC
Certified Public Accountant

500 North Trenton
PO. Box 1250
Ruston, LA 71273-1250
Phone: (318) 255-8244 Fax: (318) 255-8245

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of
Ruston, Louisiana

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30,
2009, which collectivety comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. I
have also audited the financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor
enterprise, and internal service funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying
combining fund financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. My responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I did not audit the aggregate
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other anditors whose
reports thereon have been furnished to me, and my opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the aggregate discretely presented component units is based on the reports of the other auditors.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plen and perform the
audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. I believe that my audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for my
opinions.

In my opinion, based on my audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements refarred to above
present fairly, in all materjal respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2009, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, In addition, in my opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise and internal service funds of the City, as of September
30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated March 19, 2010, on
my consideration of the City’s infernal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of intemnal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of thai testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of my audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information listed as Required
Supplemental Informaticn in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements
but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. I have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, I did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements thet collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the combining fund schedules
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining fund schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly I express no opinion on it.

-Dovd-l-ﬂ/\ F] :BMMA/ Li¢

Ruston, Louisiana
March 19, 2010



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

We offer readers of the City of Ruston’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financtal activittes of the City of Ruston for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information pgesented here in conjunction
with addidonal information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. This
discussion focuses on the primary government of the City.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for the year ended September 30, 2009 include the following:

® The assets of the City exceeded its liabilides at Septernber 30, 2009 by §119,846,937
(net assets). Of this amount, $§19,494,741 is unrestricted and may be used to meet
the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

¢ The City’s total net assets increased $6,792,267 for the year ended September 30,
2009. Net assets of governmental activities increased $6,395,230 and net assets of
business-type actvities increased $397,037.

*  As of September 30, 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of §17,190,012, a dectease of $5,354,475 from the prior year. Of this
amount $7,380,533 was unresetved, undesignated, and available for spending;
$1,247,862 was unzeserved but designated for subsequent years’ expendituzes;
§2,197,598 was reserved for debt service; $6,324,135 was resetved for encumbrances;
$35,785 was reserved for inventories; and $4,099 was reserved for prepaid items.

o Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balances for the
General Fund was §6,268,865 or 32.97% of tatal Genersl Fund expenditures and
transfers out.

* The City’s total long-term liabilities decreased by $644.839 during the cutrent fiscal
year primarily due to the payment of debt as it becomes due.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The MD&A is intended to secve as an introduction to the City of Ruston’s basic financial
statements which are the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements. This report also contins other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial stateients themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide teaders with a broad overview of the City of Ruston’s finances, in a
manner similar to private-sector business.



The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets less liabilities
which results in net assets. The statement is designed to display the financial position of the
City. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets help determine whether the City’s
financial position is improving or detctiorating,

The statement of activities provides information which shows how the City’s net assets
changed as a result of the year’s activities. The statement uses the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by private-sector businesses. All changes
in net assets are repotted as soon as the underlying event giving rse to the revenue or
expense occurs regardless of the timing of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the
City that ate financed primarily by taxes, intergpovernmental tevenues, and charges for
services (governmental activities) from functions where user fees and chatges to customers
help to covet all or most of the cost of services (business-type activities). The City’s
governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, and cultural
and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include airports, electric, water, and
sewer systems, and ambulance operations.

Not only do the government-wide financial statements include the City itself which is the
primary government, but also its component units, City Judge’s Office, and City Marshal.
Although these component units are legally separate, their operational or financial
relationship with the City makes the City financially accountable for them. Financial
information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City of Ruston, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary
funds.

Governmental funds. Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the govetnment-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-tetmn inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s neat-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of povernmental funds is catrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compate the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the City of Ruston’s near-term financing deasions. Both the governmental fund Balance
Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmenta] activities.



The City maintains eleven individual povernmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund,
1968 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, 1985 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, 1990 Sales Tax
Special Revenue Fund, and 1-20 Capital Project Fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data for the other six governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual approprated budget for its General Fund and certain special
revenue funds. Budpetary comparison schedules have been provided elsewhere in this
report to demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its
electric, water, and sewer systems, airport and ambulance services. Internal service funds are
used to accumulate and allocate costs mternally among the City’s various functions. The
City uses internal service funds to account for its workmans compensation, peneral
insurance, purchasing-warchouse and general and aute Lability services. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have
been included within governmental activiges in the govemnment-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Proprdetary fund financial statements provide separtate
information for the electtic, water system, and sewer system, which are considered to be
major funds of the City of Ruston. Data from the other proprictary funds are also presented
although they are not considered major funds.

Conversely, the intemal service funds are combined into a single, agpregated presentation in
the propretary fund financial statemeats. Individual fund data for the internal service funds
is provided in the form of combining statemnents elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide addidonal information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
budgetary schedules are presented as required supplementary information. Also, the
combining statements referred to eatlier in connecdon with nonmajor governmental funds,
nonmajor proptietary funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately following
the notes to the financial statements.

Pinancial Analysis of Government-wide Activities
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s

financial position. In the case of the City’s, assets exceeded lisbilides by $120,645,888 at the
close of the current fiscal year.



‘The largest portion of the City of Ruston’s net assets totaling approxitnately $97.8 million
{81%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g, land, buildings, streets, drainage,
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assers that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are #0f available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of telated debt, it should be noted that the rescutces needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other soutces, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabiities.

City of Ruston’s Net Assets
September 30, 2009
Govemnmental Business-type
activitieg activities Total
00 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current and other assets $21,597,816 $27,140,472 $8,968 475 $13,285 423 $30,566,291 $40,425.895
Capital assets 66,471,058 54,644,851 57,797,173 54,386,429 124,268,231 10%,031,280
Total assers 88,068,874 81,785,323 60,765,648 67,671,852 154,834,522 149,457,175
Current and other Labilities 1,831,435 2,148,803 2,746,246 3,997,910 4,577,681 6,146,713
Long-term liabilities 11,558,876 11,353,187 18,851,028 18,902 605 30,400,904 30,255,792
Toral liabilities 13,390,211 13,501,990 21,597,274 22,900,515 34,987,585 36,402,505
Net agsers:
Invested in capiral assets,
net of related debt 57,501,058 45,049,851 40,339,980 36,913,574 97,841,038 81,963,425
Restricted 2,197,598 1,370,960 313,560 74176 2511,158 2,145,136
Unsestricted 14,979,907 21,862522 4,514 834 7,083,587 19,494,741 28,946,109
Total net assets $74,678,563  $6B283333  §4S168374  $44771337  $1198469357  $113,054,670

2.1% of net assets represent resources that are subject to exrernal restriction on how they
may be used. Accounts resetved for debt service account for the total of restriceed net
assets. The remaining balance of untestricred net assets of $19,494,741 may be used to meet
the City of Ruston’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the curreat fiscal year, the City of Ruston is able to report positive balances in
all three categomes of net assets, both for the government as a whale, as well as for its
separate governmental and business-type activites.

The City of Ruston’s net assets increased by $6,792,267 dunng the current fiscal year. Key
elements of this increase are as follows:



Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capiral grants and
contibutions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific
programs

Other
Total revenues

Expenses:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Cultural and recreation

City Judge’s Office and
Marshal

Interest on long-term debt

Electric

Water

Sewer

Regional airport

Ambulance service
Total expenses

Increase in net assets
before ransfers

Transfers

Increase (decrease) in net
ARSets

Net asscts at beginning
of year

Net assets at end of year

City of Ruston’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$1,752,526 $1,805413 $28,756,859 $33,550,587 $30,509,385 $35,362,000
1,178.202 1,116,547 . - 1,178,202 1,116,547
5,724,457 2,288,433 820,024 421,650 6,544,481 2,710,083
1,420,768 1,115,948 - . 1,420,768 1,115,948
11,285,750 11,614399 - - 11,285,756 11,614399
763,828 736,479 - - 763,828 736479
1,432.678 1,486,017 - - 1,432,678 1,486,017
570,580 837032 823,717 1,119,998 1,394.297 1,957,030
24,128 795 21,000,268 30,400,600 35,098,235 54.529395 56,098,503
5,081,990 4,016,180 . . 5,081,950 4,016,180
7,548,024 5,178,690 - - 7,548,024 6,178 696
6,202,413 5,365,741 . . 6,202,413 5,365,741
868,862 846,139 . - BB 862 846,139
451347 412,626 ; ) 451347 412,626
411,612 241,474 . . 411,612 241474
. - 21,056,547 26,764,763 21,056,547 26,764,763
- - 1,887,754 1,975,842 1,887,754 1,975,842
- - 3,417,017 3,623,523 1,417,017 3,623,523
- - 422,559 393,950 422,659 393,950
- - 388,903 381,786 388,903 381,786
20,564,248 17 060,856 27 172 B8O 33,139,864 47737128 50,200,720
3,564,547 3,939,412 3,227,720 1,958,371 6,792,267 5,897,783
2,830,683 2,723,877 (2,830,683) (2723877 . -
6,393,230 6,003,289 397,037 (765,506) 6,792,267 5,897,783
68,283,333 61,620,044 44,771 337 45,536,843 113,054,670 107,156,887
§74,678,563  $68,283333  $45168374  $44771337  $119846937  §113054670

Revenues for the City’s governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2009 were
$24,128,795 compared to $21,000,268 in 2008. The increase of $3,128,527 was largely
attributable to the annexation of infrastructure for public wotks. The value of the property
received was $5,433,384.
decreased. The amount received in 2008 was §1,843 038. Sales taxes received also decreased

$328,643.

Intergovernmental revenue received for the 1-20 fund also

General revenues, specifically sales tax {46.8%), are the largest component of revenues.



$ Millions

Revenues by Sources — Governmental Activities

H Property taxes

H Sales taxes

& Charges for services
H Operating grants

H Capital grants

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $19,765,297, an increase of
approximately §2,704,441 from 2008. The City’s largest programs are general government,
public safety, and public works. The graph below shows the expenses and program
revenues generated by governmental activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

# Expenses H Revenues e @

Functional Category



Business-type Activities. Charges for services for the City of Ruston’s business-type
activities were $28,756,859, a decrease of $4,799,728 from 2008. The majority of this
resulted from the decrease in fuel adjustment revenue of approximately $3,677,525. The
increase occurred because of the increase in the cost of energy. Charges for electric utility
usage also decreased $1,234,410 due to a decrease in demand.

Revenue by Source — Business-type Activities
0.4% 1.4%

® Electric

E Water

i Sewer

H Airport

8 Ambulance

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

The costs of these activities were $27,172,880, a decrease of $5,966,984 from 2008. This
decrease was due primarily to the decrease in the cost of energy for the Electric fund of
approximately $5,976,000.

Program Expenses and Revenues — Business-type Activities

B Program Expenses ® Program Revenues
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Financial Analysis of the City of Ruston’s Funds

Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Ruston uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements, In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Ruston’s governmental funds
reported a combined ending fund balance of $17,190,012, a decrease of $5,354,475
in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, $8,848,913 or 51.5% was
unteserved, undesignated and available for spending. ($220,518) is designated for
subsequent years’ cxpenditures. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved 1o
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed (1} to liquidate contracts and purchase otders of the prior period
(86,324,135), (2) to pay debt sexvice ($2,197,598), or (3) for other restricted purposes
($39,884).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Ruston. At the end of
the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $6,268,865.
The rotal (undesignated) is available for spending at the City Council’s discretion.
The fund balance of the General Fund increased by $1,196,103. A key factor in this
increase is an increase in transfers in from the Sales Tax funds in accordance with the
sales tax proposition. Intergovernmental revenues also increased related to a grant
for street improvements.

The 1968 Sales Tax Fund has a total fund balance of $291,006 all of which is
unreserved, undesignated and available for spending for its specified purpose. Fund
balance decreased $1,700,859 as a result of an increase in transfers to the General
Fund.

The 1985 Sales Tax Fund has a toral fund balance of $507,959 all of which is
unreserved, undesignated and available for spending for spending for its specified
purpose. Fund balance decreased §1,726,028 as a tesult of an increase in transfers to
the General Fund.

The 1990 Sales Tax Fund has a towal fund balance of $312,703 all of which is
unreserved, undesignated and available for spending for speading fot its specified
purpose. Fund balance decteased §102,213 as a result of a decrease in sales tax
revenue received.

The 1-20 Fund has unreserved fund balance of ($321,547). Total fund balance
decreased $3,955,057 as a result of a decrease in bond proceeds teceived and
mntergovernmental funds received.

Proprietaty funds
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Proprietary funds

The City of Ruston’s proprietary fumds pravide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

o Unrestricted net assets of the Electrc System at the end of the year amounted to
$1,794,474. Total net assets for the Electric Systetn increased $279,261 as a result of
a decrease in revenues from penalty charges. These charges were allocated to the
other utility funds during 2009.

® The unrestricted net assets for the Water Systemn amounted to $1,510,662. Total net
assers for the Water System decreased §145,753 primarily as a result of increases
personal services expenses and transfers to other funds.

» The unrestricted pet assets for the Sewer System wete $894,690. Total net assets for
the Sewer System increased $445,668 as a result of an increase in capital
contributions and in personal services expenses.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The budget policy of the City of Ruston complies with state law, as amended, and as set
forth in Louisiana Revised Statutes Titde 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government Budget
Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.).

The original budget for the General Fund of the City of Ruston was adopted on September
2, 2008. During the year, the City Coundil revised the City’s budget several imes. Changes
were made as new information indicated a need. The major difference between the original
budget and the final budget was primarily the increase of $7,193,746 to approptiate open
purchase orders as of September 30, 2008. The increase for apen purchase orders was
spread throughout various departments. Differences between the budget and the actual
results of the General Fund ate as follows:

Revenues

o Tazes were expected to be similar to prior year revenues. Actual revenucs were
more than budget by $174,120 due primarily to an increase in property taxes
received.

¢ Intergovernmental revenues were expected to be similar to priot year revenues.
Actual revenues were less than budget by $605,870 due primarily to the grant for
street improvements being budgeted for 2009 for the full amount of the grant when
only 23% was received.

® Miscellaneous revenues were cxpected to be similar to ptior year revenues. Actual
revenues were mote than budget by $202,607 due primarily to an inczease in rent on

city property.

Expenditures

s Executive personnel expenditures were under budget by $66,431 as a result of not
being fully staffed.

11



¢ Executive operating services were under budget by §210,684 as a result of
encumbrances open at the end of the year.

¢ Executive improvements and equipment expenditures were under budget by
$192,963 as a result of projects not started.

e Civic center/city hall personnel expenditures were under budget by 364,807 1s a
tesult of not being fully staffed.

» Civic center/city hall operating services were under budget by $58,474 as 2 result of
encumbrances open at the end of the year and lower than anticipated maintenance of
building and grounds expenditures.

¢ Inspections operating expenditures were under budger by $70,194 as a result of
lower than anticipated housing demolition expenditures and encumbrances open at
the end of the year.

* Tolice departiment personnel expenditutes were under budget by $64,650 as a result
of employee insurance expenditures being lower than expected.

¢ DPolice department materials and supplies were under budget by $63,746 as a result of
fuel expenditures being lower than expected.

¢ Police department improvements and equipment were under budget by $141,931 as
2 result of lower than expected costs during the fiscal year for the police department
building.

e Fire department personnel expenditures were under budget by $58,988 as a result of
overtime expenditures and employee tetirement expenditures being lower than
expected.

¢ DPublic Works Administration operating services were under budget by $61,651 as a
tesult of lower than anticipated utilities expenditures and encumbrances open at the
exd of the year.

o Street department personnel expenditures were under budget by $134,753 as a result
of not being fully staffed.

» Street department operating expenditures were under budget by $632,329 as a result
of encumbrances open at the end of the year.

® Strcet department materials and supplies were under budget by $81,067 as a result of
fuel expenditures being lower than expected.

» Street department improvements and equipment expenditures were under budget by
$2,340,975 as a result of encumbrances open at the end of the year.

¢ Solid waste materials and supplies were under budget by $145,930 as a result of fuel
expenditures being lower than expected.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets, The City of Ruston’s investment in capital assets as of September 30, 2009
amounts to $124,268,231 net of depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings and improvements, streets, drainage, furniture and equipment, and construction in
progress. The table below shows the value at the end of the fiscal year.

12



Land and land
improvements
Buildings
System
Improvement
Improvements
other than
buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction
in progress
Total

City of Ruston’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
actvities activities Total
2000 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$10,068,430 $9,216,826 $1,266,223 $1,266,223 $11,334,653 $10,483,049
2,624,737 2,315,882 876,746 895,230 3,501,483 321,112
- - 23,392,685 24,018,073 23,302,685 24,018,073
4,325,698 3,480,181 2,639,107 2,945,751 6,964,805 6,425,932
5,324,222 4,760,047 5,688,994 6,034,137 11,013,216 10,794,184
15,569,031 11,492,012 - - 15,569,031 11,492,012
28,558,940 23,379,903 23,933,418 19,227,015 52,492,358 42,606,918
366471058 $54,644.851  §51797173  $54386420  $124268231  $109,031.280

Majot capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

The renovation of the historic fire station for approximately §446,640.
The purchase of a ladder truck for the Fire department for approximately $549,860.

The completian of the West Kentucky/North Chautauqua project far the Street
department for approximately $972,732.

¢ The putchase of a dump truck for the Solid Waste department for approximately
$175,199.
o The purchase of a garbage track for the Solid Waste department for approximately
$230,026.
e The completion of the LCDBG Southeast Sewer project for the Sewer fund for
approximately $671,115.

¢ The completion of the Sanitary Sewer System project for the Sewer fund for
approximately $163,783.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Ruston had total debt

outstanding of $27,275,078.

September 30, 2009.
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' Outstanding Debt

Govemmental Business-type Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General
obligation bonds - - - - - -
Revenue bonds  $8,970,000  §9,595,000 $1,010,000 $1,275,000 $9,980,000  $10,870,000
DEQ Revolving
Loan fund - - 16,947,193 16,677,855 16,947,193 16,677,855
Due to State - - 347,885 434 857 347,885 434,857
Total $8,970,000 39,595,000  $18,305,078  §$18,387,712  $27,275078  $27,982,712

For additional information regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

In setting the budgets for 2009, the City dealt with a number of issues with City-wide impact.
One of the factors was the national economy. Although the local economy is stable, the City
1s not immune o natonal economic trends. For the year 2010, the City budgeted for sales
tax dollars to remain steady. Preliminary 2010 figures reflect a decrease of approximately
5%. National unemployment rates for September 2009 were up to 9.8% compated to 6.2%
at September 2008,

Spiraling health care costs nationwide continue to have an impact on City budgets, in
addition to increasing retirement costs. In 2010, the budgets will be required to provide
more than $2 million te pay the City’s portion of health care premiums.

All of these factors were considered in prepating the City’s budget for the 2010 fiscal year.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all
those with an intetest in the City of Ruston’s finances. Questions conceming any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should

be addressed to the City of Ruston Treasurer’s Office, 401 North Trenton Street, Ruston,
LA 71270.
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Basic Financial Statements
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivaents

Investments

Racelvables, net

Unbilled revenue

Due from other govemments

infemal bolances

Invenicrias

Prepaid Hams

Bond issus costs, net

Capital assats:
Land and construction in prograss
Other copital assefs, net of dapreciation

Todal gssets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accruad liabilifies
accrued interest pavable
Claims
Deposits
Non-current liabilities:
Due within one yaar
Due in more than one year
Post amployment benefit obligalion
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
invesiedin copital assels, net of related debt
Rastricted for:
Debt service
Unresticted
Total net assets

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 200%

Primary Governmennt
Governmenial Business-type Component
Activilies Activities Total Units
$ 9,533,805 $ 2962405 $ 12498210 $ %4Ba72
9,631,696 2,743,489 12,375,185 55,744
1,982,041 1,045,708 3,047 749 2,718
63,893 1,649,270 1,733,163 -
- 40,484 60,486 7.737
264,222 (264,222) - -
35,785 710,091 745,876 -
14.071 - 14,071 3,653
72,303 21,248 93,551 -
38,627,370 25,199,641 43,827.011 -
27,843,488 32,897,532 40,441,220 143,078
88048874 66,765,648 154,834 522 1,166,102
474,532 1,689,345 2,345,878 16,863
606,333 173.777 780,110 3.75¢
29,697 125,641 155,338 .-
458,391 . 458,39 -
40,482 757,482 817.964 -
820,000 873,972 1,693,972 25.000
2.939.925 Y7.977.056 27,916,761 -
798,951 - 798,951 -
13,390,311 21,597,274 34,987,583 45.622
57,501,058 40,339,980 97.841 038 123,078
2,197,598 313,540 2,511,158 -
14,979,907 4,514,834 19,494,741 997,402
S 74678563 § 45188374  $ 119848937 § 1,170,480

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
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CITY CF RUSTON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Program Revenues

Functions/Programs
Primary Govamment:
Governmental Activities:
General govermnment
Public safety
Public works
Culturgl and recreation
City Judge ond Marsha
interast on long-term debt
Toial govemnmentai activities
Business-lype aclivifies:
Hectic System
Water System
Sewer System
Ruston Almont Authority
Ambulance
Total business-type activitias
Jolal primary govemment

Component unils:
City Judge
City Marshall
Total compaonent units

The accomparying notes are an integral part of the financicl statements.

Operaling Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Sarvicas Contributions Contributions
$ 5081990 § 143475 § 1.163849 % 18,587
7,548,024 276,426 8,995 -
6,202,413 1,221,281 5,358 5,705,870
848,842 111,144 - -
451,347 - - -
411,612 - - -
20,564,248 1,752,526 1,178,202 5,724,457
21,056,547 22,594,914 - 50,080
1,887,754 2,058,740 - -
3407017 3,679,974 - 471,115
422,659 15,049 - 89,282
388,903 408,182 - 2,547
27,172,880 28,756,859 - 820024
T$47,737,028 $30,505,365 § 1178202 § 6,544,448

—— ==

480,118 559,208 - -
306,724 . 301,385 - -
§ 785,844 $ 840,593 - -

— = — § - ———

Geaneral revarwas:
Taxes:

Property taxes levied for general purposes
Property {axes levied for recreaticn focliities and progroms
Scles taxes levled for general purposes
Sales taxes levied for recreation focillties and programs
Sates taxes levied for sheat and drainage facllities
Sales taxeas levied for fire protecfion
Sales taxes levied for polica protection
Sales toxes ‘evied for drug prevention programs
Sales toxes levied for debit service
Insurance taxes

Alcohoiic beverage taxes

Franchise taxes
Intergavemmenial
Investment eomings
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfars
Change in Met Assels
Net assets - beginning
MNet assets - ending


file:///aKez

Nei (Expanses) Revenuve and

Changas (n Net Assefs

Primary Government
Govemnmental Buslness-type Component
Activilies Aclivities Total Units
% {3.755,879) - $ [3.755879) -
{7.262,603) - {7,262,603) .
730,096 - 730,096 -
{757,718} - [757.718) -
{451,347} - {451,347 -
{411,612 - {411,612 -
{11.902,063 - {11,709,063 -
- $ 1,588,447 1,588,447 -
- 170,984 170,984 -
- 234,072 934,072 -
- {318,328) (318,328} -
- 28,824 28,824 -
- 2,404,003 2,404,003 ~
{11.909,063) 2,404,003 {9.505,060) -
—-—- e
- - - : 3 79,090
- - - (5,241}
- - - 73,749
949,120 - 242,120 -
471,648 - 471,448 -
4,955,566 - 4,956,566 -
258,482 - 258,682 -
600,000 - 400,000 -
1,433,051 - 1,433,051 -
1,433,051 - 1,433,051 -
20,000 - 20,000 -
2,584,406 - 2,584,406 -
347,273 - 347,273 -
9,085 - 2,085 -
407.470 - 407.470 -
1,432,678 - 1,432,678 -
279,407 130,355 409,764 20,800
221071 693,362 984,533 -
2,830,683 [2.830,483) - -
18,304,293 {2,006,964) 16,297,327 20,800
6,395,230 397,037 6,792,267 94,549
48,283,233 44,771,337 113,054,670 1,025,931
§  74,678583 45168374 § 119848937 ~§ 1,120.480
- — — —— ———— | e
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investmenis
Receivables, net
Unbilled revenues
Due from other funds
Inventories, al cost
Prepaid iflems
Tota! cssets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liobikties:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due o other funds
Deposits and defered charges
Total liobilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt service
Encumbrances
Inventories
Prepaid ifems
Unreserved, undesignated

Urreserved, designated reported in nonmajor:

Capital project funds

Unreserved. undesignated, reported in nonmajor:

Speciat revenue funds
Total fund balances

Total llabiities and fund balanceas

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
19468
Ganeral Sales Tax
3 2113845 3 465786
7.540,539 -
659,027 190,113
63,893 -
458,789 -
35,785 -
4,099 -
I0875577 655897
¥ 436768 -
476,978 -
- § 364893
60.457 -
974,203 364,893
3.593.025 -
35,785 -
4,099 -
6,268,865 291,006
9.901,774 291,006
$ 10875977 $ 655899

20
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Other Tolal
1985 1990 i-20 Governmental Govemmental
Sales Tax Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds

- i $ 2,791,814 $ 3159339 $ 8,530,784

- - - - 7.540,53%

$ 285149 $ 190113 - 654,544 1,978,946

- - - - 43,893

242,303 122,590 - 19,513 843,195

- - - - 35,785

- - - - 4,099

$ 537472 § 312.703 § 2791814 § 3833396 $ 18,997,261

- - $ 220410 $ 13,494 3 670,703

- - - 20,782 497,760

3 192.513 - 186,423 7.475 578,304

- - - 25 60482

19.513 - 406,864 41,776 1,807,249

- - - 2,197,598 2,197,598

- - 2,706,497 24,613 6,324,135

- - - - 35,785

- - - - 4,099

507.959 3 312703 - - 7.380,533

“ - {321,547) 101,029 {220,518)

- - - 1,468,380 1,468,380

507,959 312,703 2,384,950 3.791,620 17,190,012

$ 527.472 $ 312,703 $ 2791814 $§ 383339 § 18,997.261
] — b —] - —
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
RECONCILIATICN OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT CF NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Fund balances - lotaf governmeantal funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different becausa:

Capital assets vsed in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental

funds,
Governmental capital assets 85,924,841
Less accumulated depreciation {19.45%.477)

Unfunded post smployment benefit obligations are not financic!
resources and therefore are nof repored in the funds

Other assets used in govemmental activities that are not fingnciot
resources ond therefore are ot reportéd in the governmental
funds.

Unameortized bond lssucnce costs
Long-termn ligbilittes including bonds payable are not due and payable

in he curent pariod and therefore are nat reporded in the
govemmental funds.

Accrued interest payable {29.697)
Compensated absences [1.781,378)
Bondls, notas, and loans payable [8.270,000)

intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of cartain activities to individual funds. The assets and Jabiiities
of the intemal service funds are reporied with govemmental
aciivities.

Net assels of governmental activities

The accompanying notas are an infegrai part of the financiol siatements,
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CIY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF REVENLES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

1948 1985
General Scles Tax Sales Tax
REVENUES
Taxes:
Froperty 3 942,120 - -
Sales - $ 2,486,102 $ 3729144
licenses and permits 907,303 - -
Intergovernmental 1,864,730 - -
Charges fof setvices 1,218,907 - -
Fines and forfedures 280,800 - -
Investment earnings 196,900 13,204 15,839
Miscellanecus 275807 - -
Total revenues 5,691,767 2,499,306 3,744,985
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 3,422,956 27,293 34,523
Public sofety 7,974,952 - -
Public works 7.046,637 - -
Culiure and recredation - - -
City Court and Marshal 429817 - -
Debt service:
Principal - - -
interest and other charges - - -
Capital outiay - - -
Total expenditures 18,874,364 27,293 34,523
Excess [deficiency) of reverwes
over junder) expenditures {13.182,597) 2472013 3,710,462
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Transfers in 14,517,436 - -
Transfers out (138,736} 4,172.872) 5,436 A0
Total other financing sources and (uses) 14,378,700 4.172.872 5,436,450
Net change in fund balances 1,194,103 1,700.859) {1.726,028)
Fund balances - beginning 8.705,671 1,991,865 2,233,987

Fund balances - ending

$ 9901774

§ 291,006
f— ]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Other Total
1990 I-20 Govetnmantal Governmental
Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds

- - h 3 471,648 $ 1,420,768

$ 2.436,102 - 2,584,406 11,285,756
- - - 207,503

- L 3 18,587 1,019,251 2,902,548

- - 111,145 1,328,052

- - - 280,800

17,904 22,405 13,156 279.408

- - 14,749 290,556
2.504.006 40,992 4,214,355 18,695,411
23,294 - 1,253,255 4,761,321

- - - 7.974.952

- - - 7,046,639

- - 211,325 911,325

- - - 429817

- - 625,000 425,000

- - 406,228 406,228

- 4,722 987 2,300 4,725.287

23,294 4,722,987 3,198,108 26,880,569
2,480,712 {4.681,9935) 1.016,247 (8,185,158}

- 726,938 644,270 15,388,644
[2,582,925) - {724,938) (13,057,961}
{2,582,925) 724,938 {82,668) 2,830,683
{102,213) (3.955,057) 933.579 (5,354,475)
414916 6,340,007 2,858,041 22 544 487

$ 312703 $ 2,384,950 3 3,791,620 $ 17190012
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2009

Nef change in fund balonces - total govemmental funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmentol funds report capital outiays os expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
dllocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depraciation expanse.

Capital outiay
Depreciation expense

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the Stafement of Activities,
buf de nof oppear in the governmentcat funds because they are not
financial revenues.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions Involving copital
assets {l.e., sales, trads-ins, wiite offs, and donations) is to decraase
nef assels.

Post employment benefit obligation

The issuance of long-ferm debd provides current inancial resources 1o
govemmentat funds, while the repayment of the principal of lkong-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of govermmeanial
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.
Also, govemmaentol funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similor items when debt is first ssued,
whereas these amounts are defaered and amortized in the statement
of activities. The detail of Ihesa differences I the resiment of long-
tarm debt and related fems 1s o5 follows:

Principal payments

Some expenses reported in the statement of aclivities do not require the
use of cument financial resources and, thersfore, are not reported
as expendtturas in govemmental funds.
Amoriization of issuance costs
incredss in compensafed absences
Dacrease in gccrued interast

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of the intemd
service funds is reported with governmental activillas.

Change in net assels of governmental acfivities

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ (5,354,475)
10,533,835
[1,800.564) 8,733,269
5,433,384
(2,339,000}
(798.951)
625,000 625,000
(8.364)
{43,896) (49,280}
2,980
145,283

i 6,395,230
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Ruston City Ruston Chy
Judge's Marshal's
Office Ofice Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 918,832 $ 29340 $ $48.172
Investments - 55.744 55,744
Receivables - 2,718 2718
Prepaid items 2,220 1,433 3,653
Due from govermnmental unils 7.737 - 7,737
Capital assets, net of depreciation 104,745 41,333 148,078
Total assets 1,035,534 130,548 1,146,102

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 12,994 3.86% 16,863
Accrued liabilities 2,761 998 3,759
Non-current liabilities;

Due within one year 25,000 - 25000

Total abilities 40,755 4,867 45,622

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debl 81,745 41,333 123078
Unrestricted 213,034 84,368 997,402

Total net asse’s 3 994,779 $ 125701 $ 1,120,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial siatements.
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
STATEMENT QOF ACTIVITIES
COMPOMENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Program Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Revenues Changes In Net Assets

Ruston Clty Ruston City

Charges for Judge's Marshal's
Expenses Services Office Office Tolal
City Judge
Judiciat $480,118 $ 559208 £ 79,090 - $ 790%0
City Marshal
Judicial 304,724 301,385 - $ [5341) [5.341)
$786,844 $ 860,593 79090 (5,341} 73,749

Goneral Revenues;

Inferest eqrnings 17 859 2,941 20,800
Total general revenues 17,859 2,941 20,800
Change in net assets 56,949 {2,400) 24,549

Net assels - beginning 897830 128,101 1,025,923
Net assats - ending $ 994,779 $ 125701 $1.120,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financicl statements.
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

MMARY QF SIGNIFI CIES

The City of Ruston, Louisiana, (the “City"} was incomorated in 1898, under the provisions of the
towrason Act. The City operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldemnan form of government.  The City's
major operations include police and fire protection, public works, parks and recreation, utility
services, and general administrative services., In addition, the City exercises sufficient control over
other governmental agencies and authoritles that are included as part of the City's reporiing entity.

The basic criterion for determining whether another govemmental organization should be included
in g primary govemnmental unit's reporting entity for financial statements is financial accountability.
Financial accountobllity Includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's
goveming body and the abillity of the primary government 1o impose its will on the organization, or if
there s a financial benefit/burden relafiorship.  In addition. an orgonization which is fiscally
dependent on the primary govesrnment should be included in its reporting entity.

The financial statements present the City of Ruston (the primary govemment} and its component
unifs. The component units discussed below are included in the Cily's reporting enfity because of
the significance cf their operational or financial relationships with the City.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONBNT UNITS

The component units column in the govermment-wide financial statements includes the financial
dota of the City's discretely presented component unils. They are reporied in a separate
column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

City Judge's Office

The Ruston City Judge's Office was created by special legislative act. Its jurisdiction includes the
Incorporated area of the City. The City Judge is elected and cannot be removed by City
officials. The City Judge's Office is fiscally dependent on the City. The Cily has the ability to
modify or approve its budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds
colected by the City Judge's Office, pursuant to stafe siatute, which are under the conirol of
the Court. The Cily Judge's Office serves the citizenty of the Cily, The financial statements of
the City Judge's Office included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the
fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2009.

Citv Marshal

The Ruston City Marshal is an elected official. The Cily Marshal is fiscally dependent on the Chty.
The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from the General Fund.
Certoin funds are collected such as court costs, pursuant to state statute, which are under the
control of the Cilty Marshal. The City Marshal serves the cilizenry of the City. The financiat
statements of the City Marshal included in the accompanying financial statements are as of
and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009,

Complete financial statements of the individval component units may be oblained at the
following addrasses:

City Judge's Office City Marshal
P.0. Box 1821 P.O. Box 1582
Ruston, Louisiana 71273-1821 Ruston, Louisicna 71273-1582
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

OTHER RELATED ORGANIZATIONS
Housing Authorit

The Authority was created by state statutes and it is legally separate from the Cily, The Mayor
appoints the commissioners; however, the City cannot impose ifs will on the Authority since it
does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or ovenule or modify the decisions of
the commissioners.  The Authornty is fiscally independent and no financlal benefit or burden
relationship exists with the City.  Therefore, it is not included in the City's finoncial statements.

Lin i les and Use T mission

The Commission is an independent agency that collects sales taxes. |t is legally separate from
the City. The commission is a jointly govemed crganization. The Cily does not retain an ongoing
financical interest or responsibility for its operalions. It is not included in the City’s financial
statements,

Union Lincoln Regiongl Water Supply Iniligiive

The Inifintive s an independent agency that develops and ulilizes any and all aliemate water
sources within Lincoln and Union parishes o reduce the consumption of water from the Sparta
Aquifer, The Initiative is a jont venture. The City does retain an ongeing financial responsibility
for lts opergtions. 1t is not included in ihe City's financial statements.

Complete financial staternents of the individual related organizations may be obtained at the
following addresses:

Ruston Housing Authority Linceln Parsh Sales and Use Tax Commissicn
16135 North Farmerville P.O.Box 863
Ruston, Louisiana 71270 Ruston, Louisicna 71273-08463

Union Lincotn Regional Water Supply Initiative
407 §. Main Street
Famerville, Louisiana 71241

The accounting policles of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, conforn to genrerally accepted
accounting principles as applicable fo governmentat units. The accounting policies of the
discretely presented component units are consistent with those of the City. The following is a
summary of the more significant policies:

a. VERNMENT-WIDE AN ATEMENTS

The govemment-wide financial statements {GWFS) {i.e., the statement of net assets and
the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
acfivity has been removed from these statements, Governmental activities, which
nomally are supported by taxes, intergovemmental revenvues, and other nonexchange
transactions, are reported separately from business-type aclivities, which rely jo o
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary govemment is



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2009

reported separately from certain legaily separate component units for which the primary
govemment is financially accountable.

The statement of net assefs presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assefs may serve os g useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statemeni of ocfivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses care those
thot are cleorly ideniificble with a specific function or segment. Depreciation expense is
identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function. Inferest on
general long-term debt of govermmental activities is considered an indirect exponse and
is reported separately on the siagtement of activities. Interest on long-term debt of
business-type activities is recorded as direct expenses. Program revenues include 1) fees,
fines, and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use. or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2} grants and
confribulions thot are reskicted to meeling the operational or copitol requirements of @
paricular function or segment. Toxes and other items not property included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements (FFS) are provided for govemmental funds and
proprietary funds. Major individual govermmenial and enlerprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the FFS with nonmajor govemmental, nonmajer enterprise and
intemal service funds being reported on an aggregated basis.

The government-wide finoncial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incured, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Granls and similar
ltems are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financiat statements are reported using the cument financial
resources measurermnant focus and the madtfied accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as socn os they are both meagsurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they ore collectible within the curent pericd or scon
enough thereafter to pay lfabilities of the cument period. The City considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period,
except for franchise tax revenues which are considered available if collected within 90
days and grant revenue if collected within one yeor. Property taxes are recognized os
revenues in the vear in which final opproval is received from the touvisiono Tax
Commission, at which fime a valid claim exists, to the extent considered available.
Expenditures genesally are recorded when a lobility s incumred, os under occrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes are considered “measurable™ at the time of levy whereas such ifems as
beer taxes are considered "measurable” when in the hands of intemediary collecting
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agencies and are recognized as revenue at that time. Substantialty all other non-
intergovemmental revenues are susceptible to accrual and are recognized when
eamed or the underflying transaction occurs, Sales taxes are accrued in the individual
funds to which they pertain. For intergovernmental revenues. the legal and confractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used os guidance. Grants and
simitar ftems ore recognized os revenues as scon as all eligikiity requirements have been
met. In reimbursement type programs, monies must be expended on the specific
purpose or project before any amounts will be pald fo the City: therefore revenues are
recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In other programs in which monies
are virtlually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for
failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements, the resources are reflected
as revenues at the time of receipt or earler it the suscepftible to accrudl ¢riterio are met
and all other eligibility requirements are met.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered
a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with o
separote set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, Nabflities, fund
bdlance/net assets, revenues expenditures/expenses and other changes in fund
palance/net assets.  The various funds are summarized by type i the financial
staternents. The following funds are used by the City:

Governmental Funds

Governmenial funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City
are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial
resources and the related liabilities {except those accounled for in proprietary funds) are
accounted for through govemmental funds. The Cily reporfs the following major
govemmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general aperating fund of the City. Itis
used to account for dll financiol resources, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

19468 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund aoccounts for the receipt and use
of proceeds of the City’s sales and use tax, A one-half cent sales tax is dedicated
to general operating expenses. general capital assels. and waterworks extensions
and improvements.

1985 Sales Tax Fund — This specia ravenue fund accounts for the receipt and use
of praceeds of the City's sales and use tax. A three-fourths cent sales tax is
dedicated o the recreafion department, streets and drainoge. fire protection
and police protection,

1950 Sales Tax Fund = This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt and use
of proceeds of the Cily's sules ond use Jax. A one-half cent sales tax is dedicated
for police and fire departments and drug prevention.

20 Fund - This capilal projects fund accounts for infrastructure improvements

along the 1-20 Service Road that are funded from the issuance of sales tox
increrent bonds,
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Addifionally ihe City reports nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate. The funds
are within the following governmental fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds — The debt service funds are used to accourd for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debl
principal, interest, and related cosfs, The debt service funds receive a portion of
all property and sales taxes paid to the City.

Capital Project Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for financiol
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of maijor capital facilities
{other than those financed by proprietary funds and frust funds).

Proprietary Funkis

Propriefary funds are used 1o account for the Cily's ongoing organizations ard activities
which are similar fo those often found in the private sector. Al proprietory funds are
accounted for on a capital maintenance focus; that is, the measurement focus is upon
detemmination of the change in net assefs. The City reports the following proprietary fund
types:

Enderprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for activifies in which
established fees and charges are designed to recover its costs, including capital
costs such as depreciation and debt service.

internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used fo account for the
fimancing of services provided by one department of the Cily to other
depariments on o cost-reéimbursement basis, The City mainicins three intemal
service funds for workmen's compensafion. general inssrance coverage, and
purchasing/warehouse.

The City reporis the following major enterprise funds:
Eiectric System Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utllity of the City and ks
responsible for providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Lousiona. with
electricity.

Water System Fund - Operaled as a self-sustaining utility of the Cily and is
responsible for providing the residents of the City of Rusion, Lovisiana with water.

Sewerage System Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is

responsible for providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Lovisiana with sewer
freatment.
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The City apgplies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its
govemmeni-wide and business-type activities and its enterprise funds as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB  pronouncements;  Financial
Accounting Standards Beard Statements and interpretations. Accounting Principles
Board opinions, and Accounting Research Bullefins,

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the GWFS.
Exceptions to this general rule ore payments-in-ieu of laxes and other charges between
the government’s electric, water, and sewerage funcfion and vadous other funclions of
the government, Himination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the varous functions concemed. Transactions that would be
treated @s revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations external to
the City as they are exchange tansactions are accounted for as revenues and
expendilures or expenses in the funds involved.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges 1o customers or applicants
for goods, services, or privileges provided. (2] operating grants and contributions, and (3)
capital grants and confributions. intemally dedicoted resources are reported as general
revenues rather than os program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
Froprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services end producing
and delivering goods in connection with a propretary fund's principal ongoing
opercations. The principal operaling revenues of the enterprise funds and the intemal
sarvice funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds and internal sefrvice funds include the ¢ost of sades and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital asseds. All revenues and expenses
nol meeting this definifion are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

when both resfricted and vunrestiicted resources are ovailable for use, it Is the Cily's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The reserve method is used lo account for bad debt expenses on enterprise fund
receivables. Unbilled service receivables of the General Fund, Bectric Fund, Water Fund,
and Sewer Fund are determined based on October and November billings for electric,
water, sewer and refuse services. A percentage is calculated based on the read dates
for each cycle and then gpplied fo the tetal billings.

A ETS

Capital assets, which include property. plant, equipment, and infrastructure assefs (e.g..
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items). are reported in the applicable govemmental
or business-type activities columns in the GWFS and the propretary funds. Capilal assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost for assets where actual
historical cost is not available and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated foir vadue ot the date of donation.
The City maintains a threshold level for capitalization of capital assets except kand and
construction In progress. Allland and consfruction in progress is capitalized, regardiess of
the omount. All other capital asseis are capitalized ufilizing a threshold of $5,000. The
costs of nomal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assels or
materially extend assets lives are nol capitalized.
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Capital assefs are not reported in the govemmental FES.

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to
meet service demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage valuve
because managemeni feels that the salvage value Is immaterial.  Straight-line
depreciation is cakculated based on the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 10-50
Improvements other than bulldings 10-50
Infrastruciure 20-75
Distribution and collection systems 10-50
Equipment 320

NG-

In the GWFS, and proprietary funds in the FFS, long-term debt and other long-term
obiligations are reported as liabilifias in the applicable governmental activilies, business-
type activities or proprietary funds statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts. as well os issuance costs, are deferred and amorlized over the lemn of the
rafated debt. Bonds payable are reported net of the opplicable bond premiuom o
discount.

in the FFS, govemmental funds recognize bond premims and discounts, as well as bond
Issuance costs, during the curent period. The face amount of debt ksued is reported as
other financing sources, Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts are reported os other financing uses. ksuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reporied os deb
service expenditures.

INVESTMENTS

For all funds, investments are stated at lair value based on quoted market prices. The
investments ot September 30, 2009 were pimorly Cerificates of Deposit. US.
govermnment and U.5. government agency securities {see note 2 for the City's invesiment
policy.}

PREPAID [TEMS

Prepaid iferms consist of items such as prepald Insurance and othear prepaid expenditures.
The cost is recorded as an asset at the lime such items are purchased in both GWFS and
FFS. The reserve for prepaid items In govemmental funds is equal to the amount of
prepaid items to indicate a portion of the fund balance is not available for future
expenditure.
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INVENTORIES

inventories are valued at cost {first-in, fist-oul). The cost is recorded as an asset at the
fime individual Inventory items are purchased and charged as an expendifure when
used in both GWFS and FFS. Inventories in the General Fund consist of expendable
supplies held for consumption. Inventores in the enterprise funds consist of repair
materiak and spare parts.

REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS

The Bectic System Fund requires deposits for certain customers, These monies are
resticted and are reported as assets and liabilities.

Y. ND LEAV!

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts, Employeses are
permitted to use sick leave toward refirement up to a maximum of six monihs, if they
have sufficient time to qualify for refirernent. Only unpaid vacafion pay for the
empioyees has been accrued, and sick leave for the employees eligible for refirement
benefits has been accrued. Al other sick leave is recorded as an expenditure when
pdid. The esfimoted liability for unused vacation for governmental funds is recorded in
the GWFS. Vaccation leave of govemmental funds is recorded as an expenditure when
paid. Accumuiated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and
liability of thosa funds as it is eamed by the employess.

PENSION PLANS

The State of Loulsiana has 3 pension plans which cover substantially all employees of the
City who meet cerlain length of service requirements. See note 8 for details of these
plans,

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bongs, as well as certain resources set
cside for their repayment, are classified os restricted assets on the stotement of net assefs
because their use is imited by applicable bond covendants.

FUND EQUITY

In the GWFS, govemmental aclivities report restrictions of net assets for amounts that are
not available for appropriction or are legally resticted by outside parfies for use for @
specific purpose. Specific reservations of the net assets are summanzed below:

invested in capital ebt - These porlions were craated to represent
the City's interest in ifs capifol assets, (ess any related debt.

Reshicted for Debt Service — These portions segregate an amount of net assets for debt
service. These raservalions are established to satisfy restrictions imposed by vanous bond

agreements.
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in the FFS, govemmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally resfricfed by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans
that are subject fo change.

Specific reservations of the fund balance accounts are summarized below:

Raserve for Inventories - These reservas were created fo represent the portion of the fund
balance that is not availoble for expenditure even though inventories are a component
of net cumrent assets.

Reserve for Debt Service - These reserves segragate a portion of fund balance for debt |
service. These reservafions are established to satisfy reskictions imposed by various bond
agreements,

Resefve for Encumbrances - Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the
astimated amount the Cily intends 1o honor as a commitment regardless of the Iapsa in

the appropriation.

Pesignated Fund Bolance - The unreserved porfion of fund bolonce designated for
future years' expenditures indicotes the balance has been legally authorized to make up
the following years' budget.

UND B PAY

All cutstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds in the
fund financial statements. There is no activity between funds that is representalive of
lending/borowing amrangements at the end of the fiscal year. Any residual balances
ovifstanding belween the govemmenial activilies and the business-type cctivilies are
reported in the GWFS as intemal balances.

PROP TA

Property taxes attach as an enforcegble fen on property when the assessment is
approved by the Louisiana Tax Commission. Properly taxes levied are based on the
assessed value of property as listed on the previous December 31. Taxes are nommally
levied in Navember of each ysar and are due on or before December 31. A revoluation
of all real property must be made every four years, The last revaluation date was
Jaonuary 1, 2008. :

RAN VERMM A

Federal and state govemmental agencies represent an important sowrce of
supplemeantary funding to finance housing, employment and construction progroms, and
other activities beneficial 1o the community. These funds, primanily in the form of grants,
are recorded in the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and
enterprise funds. The grants nomally specify the purpose for which the funds may be
used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative.
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p. ASH EQUIV

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Clty considers all highly liquid debt
instruments [including resticted assets) with an orginal maturity of three months or lass
when purchased o be cash equivdlents,

Q. = NCE

The City is self-insurad for workmen's compensation coverage and medical Insuronce for
employges. Self-insured claims are recorded in the Cily's infemal service funds in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 10,

Incured but not reported claims are recorded as liabilities in the Insurance Fund. An
estimate for these claims is provided by a third party adminisirator based on historical
experience.

T ESTIMATES

The preparation of financiol statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to make
astimatles ond assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liobfitles at
the date of the financlal statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

All deposits of the City are held by area financial institutions. At September 30, 2009, the camying
amount of the City’s daposits was 324,029,439 and the bank balance was $26,694,006. The
difference is due to the outstanding checks and deposits in transit at Seplember 30, 2009.

The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or was collateraiized with
sacurfies held by the City's agent {one of ifs custodial banks) in the City's name. Statuas requira
that securifies pledged for deposits of the City be held by a bank other than the pledging bank.

Stale statutes authorize the City to invest in United Stotes bonds, freasury notfes, govemment
agencies’ securities, cerdificates and fime certificates of deposit of state banks organized under
the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiang, or
muiual or trust fund institutions which have underlying investments consisting solely of and limtted
to securities of the United States government or its agencies. During the year ending September
30. 2009, the City invested in cerlificates of deposit and U.S. government and U.S. govemment
agency securities.

The City's invesiments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of custodial
credif risk assumed by fhe Cify aof Sepfember 30, 2009. Cafegory 1 includes investments that are
insured or registered or for which the securifies are hekd by the City or its agent in the City's
name. Category 2 ncludes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the
counterporty's trust depariment or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
vnregistered invesiments with securifies held by the counterparty, or by its frust department or
agent, but net in the City's name.
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CATEGORY Carmying Amount

1 2 3 & Fair Yalue
u.s. govemment and U.5.
govermnment agency securifies 385411 % - % - $85.411
Total Deposiis 24,029,439 - - 24,029,439
Loulsiana Asset Managemenl Pool - - - 756,545
Total cash, cash equivalents &
investments, including resticted
cash and invesiments $24.871.395

The invesiments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool are not categotized because they are
not evidenced by securifies that exist in physical or bock entry form.  Louisiana Asset
Management Fool ("LAMPY, o local govemment investment pool, is administered by LAMP, Inc.,
a non-profit corporation organized under the lows of the State of Louisiana. While LAMP is not
required to be a registered investment company under the Invesiment Company Act of 1940, its
invesiment policies are similar fo those established by Rule 2-a7, which govermns registerad money
market funds. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local
govemmenis in Louisiana are authorized to invest. The dollar weighted average portfolio
maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a
maturity in excess of 377 days. The fair value of investiments is determined on ¢ weekly basis to
‘monitor any variances between amortized cost and market value. For purposes of determining
participants’ shares, investments are valued ot amaortized cost. LAMP is designed to be highly
liquid to give its parficipants immediate access to their accouni balances,

Discretely Presented Component Units — Deposits

All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year
ends, all deposits are insured or collateralized with securities held in the component unit's name
by its agent (the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank). The securities have
a fair value of $597,851 at September 30, 2009.

PROPERTY TAXES

the Cily levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries.
Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Lincoln Parish Assessor
and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Total assessed value was $161,372.110
and $158.799.982 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The distribution of the Cily's levy [tax rate per
$1.000 assessed value) was as fellows for 2009 and 2008:

Le
2009 & 2008
General Fund 4.04
Recreation Tax 3.C0
204
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4. RECHVABLES

Receivables as of yearend for the City's individual mgjor funds and nonmajor and intermnal
service funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are outlined

below.
Allowance for
uncollectible Net
Customers Iaxes Qther gccounts Receivable
Govemmenial activilies:
General $146,286 - %615,552 ($102.811} $4659,027
1948 Sales Tax - $190.113 - - 190,113
1985 Sales Tax - 285,169 - - 285,149
1990 Sales Tax - 190113 - - 190,113
Nonmajor govemmenital funds - $31.428 26,191 - 657,619
Total governmentat acfivities $146,286 $1.294.823 $441,743 ($102,811) $1,982.041
Business-type activities:
Beclric System $1.863.245 - $1.533 ($1.124,507) $740,971
Water Systern 253,397 - - (168,214) 85,181
Sewer System 422,147 - - (281.413) 140,734
Nonmaijor busingss-type activities 218,115 - - (119.293) 98,822
Total business-type activities $2,757,604 - $1,533 [$1,693,429) §1.065,708
S. CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:
Bolance Bakince
September 30, Sepiember 30,
2008 Addifions Refirements 2009
Govemmental activilies:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 9,216,824 $851.604 - $10.068,420
Comstruction in progress 23,379,904 7518036 {$2,332.000) 28,298,940
Tolal capital assets. not being deprecioted 32,596,730 8359.640 (2,339,000} 38,627,37Q
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 4,624,457 446,640 - 5,071,097
improvements other than buildings 6,666,990 1,106,116 - 7.773,104
Equipment 12,500,048 1,463,043 - 13.963,091
infrastructure 15971.400 4,581,780 = 20.553,280
Total capital assets being depreciatad 39.763.095 7,597,579 - 47,380,674
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings {2.308,575) (137.783) - {2.444,360)
Improvements othsr than buildings {3,186,80%) {260,599 - {3,447 ,408)
Equipment (7,740,007) (698,848) - {8,638,86%)
Infrastructure 14:479,.589) {504,760) - 4,984,349
Total accumulated depreciation (172.714974) (1.802012) - [12.514.988)
Total capiial assefs, being depreciated, net 22048121 5,795,567 - 27.843 688

Govermmental actlivifies capital assets, net

25464485 §l4165207 ($2.3390001  $£4.470.008
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Internal service funds predominately serve the gevernmental funds. Accoerdingly. their capital
assets are included as part of the above totals for govemmental activities.

Construction in progress for governmental octivities consisted of $23,807.795 for an 120
Infrastructure projects; $947,2%0 for the Police depariment building: $490,415 for the Streetscape
project; $2.793.533 for the Public Works Complex Additions; $128,781 for the Martin Luther King
Extension: $5.100 for the Frazier Road project; $102,333 for the Clay Street project; $31.976 for the
Lewis Street project; $134.761 for the Spears Parking lot project; $113.617 for the Tech Research
Park Line 8 Grade and Homer Street Reconstruction project; $3.339 for the Hucklebemny Trails Perk

project.

Business-type activities:

Beactric System

Capitdl assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assefs, being depreciated:
Buildings

Systerm Improvement

Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

System Improvement

Equipment

Tolal accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depraciated, net

Elechic Systern capital assels, net

Balance
September 30,
2008

$622.501

939013
1,561,514

2,112,128
25.718,466

20.312.724
48,146,318

[1,642,671)
(14,740,845)
[18,104,432)
[34,487.948)

13,658,370

215212 884

Balance

September 30,

Additions  Refirements 2009
- - $4622.501
34,884,472 (3175416} 5,648,049
4,884,472 (175,416} 6,270.57Q
- - 2.112,128
697,805 - 26,416,271
100,831 {2,700) 20.413.855
798,634 {(2,700) 48,942 254
(37.758) - {1.680,429)
(1,143,098) - [15,883,943)
(461,427) 2700 [18.563,159)
[1.642,283) 2700 [36.127.531)
647 - 12.814.723
$4.040 525 B175.414) $12.085293

Construction in progress for the elsctic system consisted of $1,522,871 for the McDonald Avenue
Substation vpgrade; $1,000,994 for the é2 kV Transmission Ling Upgrade; $2,273,808 on the Public
Works Complex Additions; $151.989 for the Fiber Optic Installation project; $87.782 on the
Automated Timekeeping project; $479.553 on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure project;
$25,450 on the Nexus Fiber project: and $105,620 for the Georgia Avenue Reconduct project.

Water System

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Bolance
September 30,
2008

$75,070

214,429
499
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Additions

$63.679
63,879

Retrements

Balance
September 30,

2009

$75.070
278,308
393,378



Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

System Improvement

Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accurmulated depreciation for:

Buildings

System Improvement

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

water System capital assetls, net

Balance

September 30,

2008

139,234
10,679,947

764.56%
11,584,450

(99.568)
(6.247.932)
{561.091)
16.908,591]
4675899

54265328
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Additions

t

46,11

46,114

(4,115)
(382,947)

160,737)
1447.799)
1401,683)

13307.806)

Retirements

[ AR

Bolonce

Sepiember 30,

2009

139,934
10,679,947

810,683
11,630,564

{103,683}
(6,630,879)
(621.828)
(7.356,390)
4274174

£4.627.552

Construction in progress for the waler system consisted of $211,941 for the new Elevated Water
Storage Tank; 348,547 for the Master Plan for development of water distribution system; and
$17.800 for the Vienna Line Replacement project.

Sewer System
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

tand

Construction in progress
Total capital assefs, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Systemn Improvement

Equipment

Tolal capital ossets being deprecialed

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

System Improvement

Equipment

Tolal accumuiatad depreciation
Total capifal assets, being depreciated, net

Sewer System capilal assets, net

Balance

September 30,

2008

$218,801
18047348
18.266,142

112,384
18,937.857

2401799
24,452,040

(50,201)
110,329,421}
[2,011,959)
(12,391,581)
12,060,459

$30.32¢ 408

Additions

$39.529
39,529

38,969
671,115
503,798

1,213,882

{4,038)
(458,262)
[485,578)
(957,876

256

£295.a58

Retirements

Balance

Seplember 30.

2009

$218,801
17,923,094

18,141,895

151,353
19,608,972
5,893,175
25,653,500

(54,237)
(10,797.683)
(2,485,111
{13,337,035)
12,316,465

330,498 360

Construction in progress consisted of $17,923,094 for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade.

50


http://S4.627.552

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Airport Authority

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being deprecioted:
Buiidings

Runways, aprons, and taxiways
Equipment '
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulaled depreciation for:
Buildings

Runways, aprons, and faxiways

Equiprnent

Total accumulated depraciciion

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Alrport Authority copital assets, net

Bakince

September 30,

2008

$349.851

26,225
376,076

407,215
6,060,31

191,275
6,658,881

(83.991)
(3,114,640)

{6L293)
(3.259.924)
3:398.257
33775033

Addifions  Refrements

397,666
97.686

32,964
39.964

(11,544}
(306,644}
(33,122)
B33
[311,348)

(213,660}

[$37.954)
{39,964}

839,964}

Balance

September 30,

2007

$349,851

B3.947
433.798

407,215
4,060,391
231,239
6.698,845

(95,535)
(3,421,284)
(94,415)

[3.611,234)
3,087,411

§3.521.,409

Consiruction in progress consisted of $49.497 for the Helipad and T-Hangars project; and $14,450

for the Obstruction Removal project.

Capifal assets, being depreciated:
Equipment

Less accumulaied depreciation for:

Total copital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type acllvilles capitat assets
Capital ossets, nol being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets. not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

System Improvement

Runways, aprons, and faxiways
Equipment

Total copital assets being deprecioted

Balance

September 30,

2008

$382,545
(283,000}
399,545

$1,266,223
12,227,015
20,493,238

2,771,661
55,336,270
6,060,391

27055912
91,224,234
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$18,616

{13.602)
35,014

$6,085,566
5.085,56¢

38,969
1,368,920

709,323
217,212

Retirerments

($379,143)
(379.163)

f15,122)
{15.122)

Balance

September 30,

2009

$401,161
[294,602)
$104,559

$1.266,223

23,933,418
25,199,641

2,810,630
56,705,190
6,060,371

22,730,113
93,326,324
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Balance
September 30,
2008

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings [1.876,431)
System Improvement (31,318,198)
Runways, aprons, and faxiways (3.114.640)
Equipment (21.021,775)
Total accumulaied depreciation [57.331,044)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 33,893,190

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Additions

(57,453}
(1,994,307}

(306,644}
(1,054,446}
(3,412,870}
{1,295 458)

Reficoments

15,122
15122

Balance

September 30,

2009

(1.933.884)
{33.312,505)
{3.421,284)
{22,061,119)

(60.728.792)
32,597,532

$54386428 23780908 (33701431  §87.797.173

Depreciafion expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government s

follows:
Governmental activilies:
General govemment
Public safety

Public works, including depreciation of general

infrastructure assets
Recreation

Totlal depreciation expense-govemmental activities

Business-lype activifies:
Electic System
Water System
Sewer Systemn
Airport Authority
Ambulance

Total depreciation expense-business-type aclivities

é. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

3243.869
320,486

1,153,485
84,172
$1.802.012

1,642,283
447.799
257.876
351,310

13,602

33412870

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Govemmeniol activities:
Revenue bonds payable $9.595,000 - $625,000 $8,970,000  $545,000
Compensaied absences 1,758,187 $834,456 802,718 1,789,925 275,000
Govemmental aclivifies
Total long-term liabilities $11,353,187 $834.454 $1.427.718 3$10.759.225  $820.000
Business-type activities:
Elechic System:
Due to other govemments $185.741 - $37.148 $148.593 $37.148
Compensated absences 357,905 $130,538 94,681 391,762 6,000
Blectic System long-term
iabilities $543.644 $130.238 $133.829 3540355 43148
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Water System:
Due to other govemments
Compensaled absences
Water System long-term
liakiities

Sewer System:
Revenue bonds
DEG Revolving Loan fund
Compensated absences
Sewer Systemn long-ferm
liabifities

Ambulance Fund:
Compensated absences

Business-type activities long-ferm
liabilities
Revenue bonds
DEQ Revolving Loan fund
Due to other govemments
Compensated absences
Business-type activity long-term
llablities

Internal service funds predominanfly serve the govemmential funds.

Beginning

Balance

$249.114
48,717

1207.833

$1.275.000
16,677.855

28992
$180)).847

$49.279

$1.275,000
18,677.855
434,857
514,893

$18.902.605

Additions

$22,994
£22.994

$74%,338
28,481

$777812

$23.689

5749;335-1
207;;92-
5252.040

Reductions

$49.824
19,439

62243
$265,000
480,000
34912

3279212

$25613

$265,000
480,000
86.972
176,645

Due

Ending Within
Balance One Year
$199,292 $49.824
22272 2,000
$251564  Rol804
$1,010,000 $270.000
16,947,193 500,000
22,561 3,000
318009754 3773000
$49.355 56,000
$1.010,000 $270,000
14,947,193 500,000
347,885 85,972
545950 17.000

31008617 $18851.008 3823272

Accordingly, long-term

liabilties for themn are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. For the
govermmmenial aclivifies, the balance of compensated absences is generally liquidated by the

General Fund.

Bonds payable at September 30, 2009 are cormprised of the following issues:

Govemnmental Aclivities:
Tax Increment Bon

$10,000,000 — 2008 Sales Fax Increment Revenue Bonds dated 03-14-08, of
$10.000,000, interest at 4.23% payable in annual installments of $545,000
1o $840,000 through September 1, 2022,

Total Tax Increment Bonds
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Outstanding
09-30-0%

$8.270.000
$8.970.000
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Business-lype Aclivities:

Revenue Bonds

$1,420,000 authorzed 1993 Sewer Revenue Bonds $1,432,536 issved,
interest at 2.45%. payable in annual installments of $80,000 to $90,000

through October 1, 2014, $430.000

$1.455.000 2003 Sewer Ulility Revenue Refunding Bonds daled 5-22-03

due in annual instaliments of $190,000 to $195,000 through Cctober 1, 0.000

2012, interest at 2.950% to 4.000%. 580,000
Total Revenue Bonds $1.010.000

DEQ Revolving Loan

$19.500,000 2005 Sewer Revenue Bonds dated 1-17-06 due in annual

installments of $500.000 to $1,480,000 through October I, 2027, interast at

3.45%. 146947,1%
Total DEQ Revolving Loon $14.947.193

Due to Other Governments

$849.716 {$334,333 for the Hectic System and $448,412 for the Water

System) due to the State of Louisiang, Departiment of Transportation and

Development, payable In annual installments of $86,972 [$37,148 from

the Eleciric Systern and $49.824 from the Water Systern) through Apiil 1,

2013. $347.885
Total Due to Other Govemments $347.885

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of Septemiver 30, 2009, including
interest requirements are s follows:

Govemmental Business-type
Activilies activities
Principal Interest Principal interest Total
Year ending September 30:
2010 545,000 379.431 856,972 616,974 2,398,379
2011 5463.000 355,378 BB4.972 521,118 2,399,464
2012 585,000 332,478 916,972 563,781 2,398,231
2013 410,000 307.733 946,969 534,923 2,399,625
2014 630,000 281,930 895,000 506,153 2,313,083
2015-2022 6035000  1199.43] 13802193 3291517 24.328.34)

28270000 $2.6857.081 §18.305078 $6.104.446 §$36.237.125

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures, The
Chy believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restricfions.

In May 2003, the City issued $1,655,000 in Sewer Ulilities Revenue Refunding Bonds 1o advance

refund $2,005.000 of culstanding 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds. The proceeds, net of issuance
costs, were deposited in an imevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt
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service payments on the 1990 Utiities Revenue Bonds. The 1990 bonds ¢re considered o be
defeased and have been removed from the Cily's financial statements. The principal
outsianding at September 30, 2009 on the refunded bonds was $705,000.

In 1995, the City entered Into an agreement with the State of Louisiana, Department of
Trarsportation and Development, to reloccate a perion of the Cily's facilifies for $362.716, At
that time, the City was unsure whether it would ultimaotely be obligated to pay this amount and
occordingly did not record q liabllity in the financial records. During 2004, the State formally
requested payment and the City agreed to pay 10% of the tatal amount owed per year for ten
years.

On March 14, 2008, the Cily issued Sales Tax increment Revenue Bonds to fund engineering and
construction expendilures related to the |-20 Service Road Project. The bonds will be paid with
the incremental sales fox revenue received from the State.

The amount of long-term debt that con be incurred by the City is limited by state stalute. State
law dllows a maximurm of 10% of the assessed valuation of bended debt for any one purpose or
35% of the total assessed value for all puposes. The City assessed property value at December
31, 2009, was $161,372,110. The maxmum debt dllowable for any one purpose and loial debt
allowable by state law as of December 31, 2009, is $14,137.211 and $54,480,23% raspectively. The
Clty currenily bas no general bonded debt outstanding.

SALES TAX

The 1948 Sales Tax, 1985 Sales Tax, and 1990 Sales Tax Funds account for the collection of a one-
half cent, three-quarter cent, and one-half cent City saes and use tax, respectively, and the
distibution of this tax to other funds of the City. For financlal reporling purposes, sales taxes are
recorded as revenue in the individual funds which collect the sales tax and are recorded as
transfers to and from the operations or projects for which the taxes were levied and as cupproved
for expendlture by ordinance of the Council.

The 1968 one-half cent sales tax is used Inifially 1o pay operating expenses incurred in the
adminisiration and collection of soles taxes. Certain contributions may be made from these
funds. After these payments, the remaining amount is payable to the General Fund.

The 1985 thres-quarter cent sales tax is used initiclly to pay operating expenses incurmed in the
adminkstration and collection of sales taxes. Payments are made on a monthly basis 1o the
Ruston Parks and Recreation Fund of up 1o seven percent of the annual net proceeds for
construction, acquiing. improving and/or operating recreation focilifies and programs. Afler
these paymenis, the remaining amount is payable to the General Fund for public works, fire
protection, and police protection.

The 1990 one-hdlf cent sales tox is used Inftially to pay operating expenses incured in the
administration and collection of sales taxes. After these payments. the remaining amount is
pavable to the General Fund for fire protaction and police protection.
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8. MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER COST-SHARING BENEFIT PLANS = PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
unicipal s' Redfir Syst

Bian Description - Substantially all full-iime employees except police and firemen of the City of
Ruston cre covered under the Municipal Employees' Refiremeni 3ystern of Lovislana, (the
"System) a cost sharing multiple employer public employee refirement system, confrofled and
administered by the Board of Trustees of the System. The System is mandatory for all employees
who are employed on o permanent basis working ot least 35 hours per week, Benefits are
established by Siote siatutes. The Systemn Tssues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. Thatl report may be obtained by
writing the Board of Trustees, 7237 Offtce Park Bivd,, Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70809, or by calling
(504) 925-4810.

Funding Pglicy - Covered employees are required to confribuie 2.25% of their annval
compensalion and the Cily is required to contribute 13.5% of annual compernsalion. The
contiibution requirements are established and moy be amended by Siale siglyte. The City's
contribufions 1o the System for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were
3849514, $775,400, and $839,547, respectivaly. equal to the required contributions for each yedr.
In aoccordance with GASR Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by Skate and Local
Govemmenial Employees, the net pension obligation was detemmined o be zero. FPrior {0
adoption of GASB 27, the City did not repor! a pension licbility,

t r 's Retire 1 R

Plon Descriplion - The City of Ruston confributes 1o the Statewide Firslighter's Retrement System
of Loulsiana, @ cost sharing muitiple employer definad beneflt pension plan administered by the
Firefighter's Refirerment System. SFRS covers firefighters employed by any municipakity, parish, or
fire protection district of the State of Loukiana under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes
11:2251 through 2269 effective January 1, 1980, Benefits are established by Slote statutes. The
SFRS issues a publicly available financlal report that includes financial stalements and required
supplamentary information. That report may be obtained by writing the Board of Trustees,
Firefighters' Refiremen? System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Sulte 210, Baton Rouge. Louisiana  70808-
4134 or by calling [504) 925-4060.

Eunding Policy - Covered employees are required o confribule 8% of their onnual compensation
ond the City is required o conhibute 12.5% of annual compensation excluding overlime but
including State supplemental pay. The confrfibution requirements are established and may be
amended by State statute. The City's contributions to SFRS for the years ended Septermber 30,
2009, 2008, ond 2007 were $236,757, $224,141, and $210.949, respeciively. equal 1o the required
contributions for each year, In accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Govemmental Employees, the ret pension obligafion was
determined to be zero. Prior to adoption of GASB 27, the City did not report a pension liability.

jci j I ' Refi 1

Plan Description - The City of Ruston contributes to the Municipal Police Employees’ Retirement
Systemn Pension Plan, @ cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Municipal Police Employees’ Retirement System. MPERS covers any full-time
police officer, empowered to make arests, smployed by ony municipdlity of the State and
engaged in law enforcement, eaming at least $375 per month excluding state supplemental
pay, or an elected Chief of Police whose salary is at least $100 per month, ond any employee of
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this system may parficipate in the MPERS. Benefils are established by State statutes. The MPERS
issues o publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by wiiting the Board of Trustees of the
Municipal Police Employees’ Refiremant Sysiem, 8401 United Ploza Blvd., Room 305, Baton
Rouge. Louisiana 70804 or by calling 1-800-443-4248,

Funding Policy - Plan members are required 1o cantibute 7.5% of their annual compensation
and the City is required 1o contibute 9.5% of annual compensation excluding overtime but
including State supplemental pay. The contibution requirements are established and may be
amended by State statule, The City's contributions to MPERS far the years ended September 30,
2009, 2008, and 2007 were $179,541, $214,986, and $252,928, respectively, equal to the required
coniributions for each year,

2. ) UIRED INDIV UND DI
a. INTE \ P BLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund balances at September 30, 2009 were as follows:
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
Nonmajor
Govem-  Monmajor
DUE FROM 1948 Sales 1785 Sales Elechic Water Sewer mental Enterprise  iIntemal
OTHER AMDS Iox Tox B dytemn  Swslem  jvstem Eunds & Eunds sarvice Iotal
Generol Fund - $185.94% $175.545 §3.430 364748 $7.475 $20.675 569 §458.789
1985 Sales Tax $242,303 - - M - - . - . 242303
1990 Sales Tax 122.590 - - - - - - - 122,590
Yater Sysiem - - 413,507 - 20,025 - - 433,532
Sewer System - 447,184 - - - 667,184
Noanmaor
govemmental §19.513 - - - - - - 19.513
honmajor Enlerprse - - 474 - . . - = - 474
Total 13540893 AL221Y  MAAsZ) 123N SAAW  SBdJ7] 22425 120,675 42 jLE4a85

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expendilures ocour, {2) fransactions are recorded
in the accounting system, and (3} payments between funds are made.

b. INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transfers for the year ended September 30, 200? were as follows:
TRANSFERS IN
' Nonrmajor
General Almport Govemmental
TRANSFERS OUT Fund 20 Authority Fungis Iolal
General Fund - - 71,000 567,734 $138,736
1968 Sciles Tax $4172,872 - - - 4,172,872
1985 Sales Tax 5.178,298 - - 258,192 5,436,490
1990 Sales Tox 2,582,925 - - - 2,582,925
Bectric Systam 1,845003 - 14,338 84,249 1,943,590
Water System 415,654 - 985 12,978 429,619
Sewaer System 322,682 - - 221115 543,797
Nonmgajor governmeantal - 3725938 - - 726938
Total transfers $14517436  §$726330  $86.323 $644.200  §159749¢7
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Transters are used to [1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them 1o the fund that statute or budget reguires to expend them, (2) move
receipfs restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt
service fund as debt service payments become due, [3) use unresticted revenue
¢ollected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds
in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and (4) pay the General Fund in fisu of
property and sales faxes ond services performed by other departments.

c. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDRGE

For thase funds for which a budget to actual companson was made. actual expenditures
on a budgetary basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a code level basis as follows:

Aciudlona
budgetary  Negative
Fund Budigot basls vanagnce
General Fund:
General Government:
City Court and Probation 331,482 334,391 (2,90%)
Marshal 185,500 186,820 {1,320}

The unfavorabde variance in City Courl ond Probation is dus to an increase in witness fees paid
to officers and on increase in salary for the City Court part ime employes. The unfavorable
varance in Marshal is due o an undersstimate of the budget amounis relafing Yo sakary
accruals,

HNANCIAL ASSI E

Federal and State gevermmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding
to finonce housing, employment, construction programs, and other activiies beneficial 1o the
community. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General and Special
Revenue Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement
under the related grant. The gronts normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be
used and are audited annually under the single audit as mandated by the Single Audit Act of
1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Clreular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local
Governments, and Nonprofit Qrganizations.

YMENT HEALT BEN

Plan Description — The City of Ruston's medical benefits are provided through g self-nsured
medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement.

The employees are covered by one of three retirernent systems: firsl, the Municipal Employees’
Refirement System of Louisiana, whose refirement eligibilily (D.R.O.P. entry} pravisions are as
follows: 25 years of service at any age; or, age &0 and 10 yedars of service; second, the Municipal
Police Retrement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility [D.R.C.P. eniry) provisions are
Qs follows: 25 years of service al any age: age 50 and 20 yaars of service; or, age 55 and 12 years
of service; and third, the Frefighters’ Refirement System of Loulsiona, whose retirement eligibility
(D.R.O.P. eniry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of
service: or age 55 and 12 years of service. Complete plan provisions are included in the official
plan documents.
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Life insurance coverage In varying amountis are provided to refirees and the blended rate (for all
refired combined} is approximately $0.27 per $1.000 of insurance. The employer pays 100% of
the cost of the retires life insurance. Since GASB 45 requires the use of “unblended" rates, we
have used the %4GAR moriality table described above to "unblend” the rates so as to
reproduce the composite blended rale overcll as the rate structure to calculate the actuarial
valuation results for fife insurance. All of the assumptions used for the valuation of the medical
benefits have been used except for the trend assumption; zero frend was used for life insurance.
Retiree insurance coverage amounis are $20,000, reduced to $10,000 at age 70 and to $1,000 at
age 75.

Contribution Rates — Employess do not confribute to their post employment benesfils costs unti
they become refirees and begin recelving those benefits. The plan provrsfons and contribution
rates are contained in the officlal plan documents.

Fund Policy - Unfil 2008, the City of Ruston recognized the cost of providing post-employment
medical ond fife benefits (City of Ruston’'s porflon of the reliree medical and life benefit
premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums were dus and thus financed the cost of
the post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 2008/2009, City of Ruston's portion of
health care funding cost for retired ermployees totaded $245,053, and the life insurance fotaled
$2.885.

Eftective with the Fiscal Year beginning Cctober 1, 2008, the Cilty of Ruston implemented
Govemnment Accounting Standards Board Slatement Number 45, Accounting and Fnanciol
Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions {GASB 45).

Annual Required Contribytion — City of Ruston's Annual Required Contribufion (ARC) i an
amount actuarially determined In accordance with GASB 45. The Annual Required Contribution

(ARC) is the sum of the Nomg! Cost plus the conhibution to amorfize the Actuarial Accrued
Liability {AAL). A level dollar, closed ameortization perod of 30 years (the maximum ameortization
period allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used for the post-employment benefits. The total ARC
for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008 Is $1,029,815 for medical, and $17,074 for kfe, as set
forth below:

Medical Life

Nomnal Cost 341,975 $4.882
30-year UAL amortization amaunt 687,839 12,192

Annual required contribufion {ARC)  §1.029.815 £17.074

Net Post-emplovment Benefit Obliaalion (Assell — The table below shows City of Ruston’s Net
Other Post-ernployment Benefit (OPEB} Obligation [Asset) for the fiscal year ending September
30, 2009:
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Medical Lite

Beginning Net OPEB Obligation

{Asset) 10/1/2008) $0 $0
Annual required contrilbution +1,022.815 +17,074
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

{Asset) -0 -0
ARC Adjustment +0 +)
QOPEB Cost 1,029,815 17.074
Contribution 0 0
Current year retiree premivm -245,053 -2,685
Change in Net OPEB Obligation +784,762 +14,189
Ending Net OPEB Obligation

{Asset) 9/30/2009 $784,762 $14,189

The following fable shows Cily of Rusfon's annual post employment benefits {PEB) cost,
percentage of the cost confibuted, and the net unfunded post employment benefits {PEB)
liakility (asset):

Post Percentage of Net OPEB
Employment Annual Annual Cost Obligation
Benefit Fiscal YearEnded = _OPEB Cost Contributed {Asset)
Medical September 30, 2009 $1.022.815 23.8% $784,762
Life September 30, 2009 $17,074 16.9% $14,189
Funded Stgtus and Funding Progress — In the fiscat year ending September 30, 2009, City of

Ruston made no contibuytions to its post employment benefits plon. The plan was not funded ot
all, has no assets, and hence has a funded rafic of zero. As of Oclober 1, 2008, the first and most
recent actuarial valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) was $11,893,97¢ {medical) and
$151,349 {iife), which & defined as that portion. as determmined by & particular actuarial cost
method {City of Ruston uses the Unit Credit Cost Method). of the actuarial present value of post
employment plan benefits and expenses which i not provided by nomal cost. Since the plan
was nol funded in fiscal year 2008/2009, the enfire actuarial accrued fiability of $11.893,979
imedical) and $151,349 (life) was unfunded.

Medicol Life
Actuarial Accrued Liabllity (AAL) $11.893,979 $151,349
Actuarial value of Plan Assets 0 0
Unfunded Act. Accrued Liability (UAAL) 11.893.979 151.349
Funded Ratio [Act. Val. Assets/AAL) 0% 0%
Covered Payroll {active plan members) 10.163.545 10,143,545
UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll M% 1.49%

Actugrid Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounis and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, The

actuarial valuations for post employment befits includes estimates and assumptions regarding
{1} tumover rate; (2] refirernent rate; {3) heaith care cost frend rate; (4) mortdlity rate; [5)discount
rate finvestment refum assumptions): and {4) the period 1o which the cosis apply {past. curent,
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or fulure years of service by employees). Actuardlly determined amounts are subject fo
continual revision as actual resulls are compared fo past expectations and new esfimates are
made about the future,

The actuaral colculations ore bosed on the fypes of benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan ({the ptan as understooed by City of Ruston and its employee plan members) ot
the fime of the valuation and on the potter of sharing costs between City of Rusion and its plan
members fo that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the
patiem of cost sharing between City of Ruston and plan members in the future, Consistent with
the long-term perspeciive of actuaral calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions
used include fechniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities
and the actucrial value of assets.

- The ARC i delermined using the Unit Credit Cost Method. The
empioyer porlion of the cost for refiree medical care in eoch future year is determined by
projecting the curent cost levels using the hecglthcare cost rend rate and discounting this
projected amount ¢ the volualion date using the other described perfinent actuarial
assumpfions, including the investment retum assumption [discount rate), mortality, and tumover,

Actearial Value of Plan Assets - Since this is the first actuarial valuation, there are not any assets,
it is anticipated thal in future valuations a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial
Standards Boargd ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statemeant 45.

Iumover Rate — An age related tumover scale based on actual experience as described by
administrative staft hos been used. The rates, when applied fo the acfive employee census,
produce an annual turnover of approximately 12%. The rates for each age are below;

Age Percent Tumover
18-25 20.0%
26-40 15.0%.
41-54 2.0%
55+ 7 0%
Past employment Bensafil Plan Fiigibility Requirements - Based on past experience, it has been

assumed thot enlilerment to benefits will commence three years alter retirement eligibility
{D.R.C.P. entry], os described above under "Plan Descripfion", except that police and fire
personnel were assumed fo wait until age 60 and 10 years of service instead of age 55 and 12
vears of service. Medical benelils are provided to employees upon actual refiremsent. The
employees are covered by one of three retirement systemns: first, the Municipal Employees’
Refirement System of Louisiana, whose retrement eligibility {D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as
follows: 25 years of service at any age: or, age 60 and 10 years of service: second, the Municipal
Police Refirement System of Louisiana, whose refrement eligibility (D.R.O.P. enfry) provisions cre
as follows: 25 years of service at any age: age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 35 and 12 years
of service; and third, the Firefighters' Relirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibflity
{D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of
sarvice; of, age 55 and 12 years of service, Entitement to benefits confinue through Medicare to
cleath.

Invesiment Retum Assumption {Discount Rate] - GASB Stotement 45 states that the investment

retum assumption should be the estimated long-term invesiment vield on the investments that

61



12

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

are expected 1o be used fo finance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plon which is funded).
Based on the assumpftion that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annudl investiment return has
been used in this valuation. This is a conservative estimate of the expected long term return of
balanced and conservative investment portfolio under professional management.

Heaith Care Cost Trend Rate — The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on
projections performed by the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicore & Medicaid

Services as published in Nafional Health Care Expenditures Projections: 2063 fo 2013, Table 3:
Nafional Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distnbution and
Average Annuadl Fercent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Colendar Years 1990 - 20!3
released in January, 2004 by the Health Care Financing Administration (www,

“Siate and Local” rates for 2009 through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013
gracdudted down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later.

Zero trend has been assumed for valuing life insurance.

Mortality Rate ~ The 1994 Group Annuily Reserving ($4GAR) table, projected to 2002, based ona
fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female
morlality rates, was used. This is the mortality table which the Internal Revenue Service requires
o be used in determining the value of accrued benefits in defined benefit pension plans. Since
GASB 45 requires the use of “unblended’ rates, we have used the 24GAR mortallly table
described above to "unblend” the rates so as to reproduce the ¢composite blended rate overall
as the rate structure ta calculate the actuarial valuation results for life insurance.

Meth ining Vail - The “value of benefis" has been assumed to be the

pottion of the premium ofler refirement daote expected fo be paid by the employer for each
rofiree and has been used as the basis for calculaling the actuarial present value of OPEB
benefits o be paid. The emplayer pays a percentoge of the cost of the medical insurance for
the retiree and dependents according to a formula based on service at time of actual
retirement. The percentage is 50% for at least 30 years of service; 40% for 25 but less than 30
years of service; 25% for al least 20 but less than 25 years of service; and, zero for less than 20
yeaors of service. The rates provided to which these percenfages apply are “unblended" rates as
required by GASB 45,

C NTIN C
Construcli ioct

There gra cerlain construction projects in progress at September 30, 2009, The City issued
$2,000,000 in sales tax increment bonds in 2001 and $10,000,000 In 2008 for the pumpose of
providing engineering and construction expendiiures related to the 120 Service Road Project.
The project is estimated to cost approximately $25 milion. The City has spent approximately
$947,290 on the Police department building. The Cily has expended approximately $490,415 on
the Shreetscape project.  The City dlso expended $516,568 on various street projects. The city
pald $5,067,341 on the Public Works complex addifions. The city paid approximately $3,332 on
the Hucklebeny Trails Park project, The City has paid approxdmately $1,000,9946 on the &9 XV
Transmission Line uvpgrade. The Cilty has expended $1,522.871 for the McDonald Avenue
Substafion upgrade. It also has expended $283,060 on various electric line extension and
relocation projects. The City has also expended $87,782 for an Automated Time Keeping System.
It has also paid $479,553 on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure fot project. The City has also
paid $211,941 for the new Bevaled Water Storage Tank and $48,547 for the Master Plan for
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development of water distibution system. It has also expended $17,.800 on the Vienna Line
Replacemen project. In 2004 through 2009, the City paid $17.923.094 for the Wastewatsr
Tregtment Plant Upgrade. The City also expended approximalely $69,497 for the Helipad and T-
Hangar project and $14,450 to remove obstructions at the aimport.

Risk Mancgement

Tha City is exposed to various risks of loss refated to torts; theft of. damage to and destruction of
assets; erors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains
commoercial insurance for risks related to {1) Public Official Erors and Omissions Labfiity, {2)
General Liabifity, {3) Business Aulo Liability, [4) Law Enforcement Protessional Liabllity, and (5) Fire
and Extended coverage. Setiled claims resulfing from these risks did not exceed commercial
insurance coverage in the current year. The General Liability and Business Auto Liability are
subject to a $1,000.000 per occurrence limit. The Public Official Errors ang Omnissions Liobility and
Law Enforcement Professional Liability are subject to a $1,000,000 per occumence Emit with a
$50,000 deductible. The City maintained property insurance during the year on approximately
$77 million in City property, subject to a $100,000 per occurrence retention for property claims.
The properly insurance is with Zurich/Liberty Ins.. Co.

W, ! tion

The Cily established a limited risk management program for worker's compensation in 1988,
Premiums are paid into the Workmen's Compensation Self-insurance Fund by other funds and
are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and adminisirative costs of the program. An excess
coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $175000. Reported and an
estimate of incurred but pot reported claims of $301,258 have been accrued as a liabiity based
vpon the service company's loss reserve report. Interfund premiums are based upon the
approximate premivm. Payments (o the worker's compensation fund are accounted for as an
expenditure/expense of the paying fund. The Workman's Compensation Self-insurance Fund
has nel assets of $459,425 at September 30, 2009. There was no increase In Insurance coverage
from the pror year. Mo claims exceeded the City's inswrance coverage for each of the past
three fiscal yeors.

Genergl Self-insurgnge

The City established a limited risk management program for employee medical coverage in
1988. Amounls paid into the General Self-Insurance Fund stem from employee contributions,
payments by refired employees, and paymenis by ofher funds, and are available to pay claims,
claim reserves and administrative costs of the progrom. During the year ended Septemibber 30,
2009, a total of $2,257,102 was paid in benefits and administrative costs. The insurance jund has
net assets of $1,955.702 at September 30, 2009. An excess coverage coHdnsurance policy covers
individual claims in excess of $70,000 per calendar year. Incured but not reported claims of
$157,133 have been accrued os a liobilily based vpon information provided by the cloims
administrators. Interfund payments are based on total operating expenses minus employee
confributions and payments by refired employees. Payments to the General Self-Insurance Fund
are accounted for as an expendifure/expense of the paying fund. There were no reductions in
insurance coverage from the prior year. No claims exceeded the Cily's insurance coverage for
each of the past three fiscal years.

A recondiliation of changss in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the self-insurance funds i as
follows:
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Accrued Accrued
claims Claims Claims clairms
October ] ingured paid seplember 30
Worker's Compensation:
2008 $14%,241 $119.477 $170,994 $97.724
2009 97.724 634,719 431,185 301,258
Generdl Insurance:
2008 178.863 1,958,840 1,969,404 148,321
2009 148,321 1,833.148 1,844,354 157,133
Litigation

The City is defendant in several lawsuils in which the outcome is uncertain at the present time.
in the opinion of the City Attomey, the City's ulimate exposure will not have a material adverse
affect on the financial condition of the City. The City believes that adequate provision has been
made for any amounts not covered by insurance should the Court find in favor of the: plaintiffs.

Grant Disallowances

The City porlicipates in federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits under the Single Audit Act. Such audils could lead to requests for
reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants.
City management befieves that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may crise from
future audits will not be material.

Rev from the State of Louisi

The Genetrdl Fund recelves varous revenues from the State of LousionQ. The contfinuafion of
these revenues at these amounts is confingent on a varefy of foctors at the siate (evel,

wsequent Event

In October 2009, the Cify issued $4,000,000 in Utiities Revenue Bonds, for the purpose of funding
the cosls of construcling a new water tank.
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funauditad)
Achual Yarkance with
Amounts Anal Budget
Budgated Ameunts Budgetary Postiive
Orignai Fnal Basiy {Negaive)
REVENLUES
Taxes 3 775,000 $ 775000 $ 49,120 $ 174,120
Licenses and Permits 845,200 845200 907,503 42,303
infergovermmental 1,259,000 2,470,600 1,844,730 (805,870}
Charges for services 1,220,963 1,220,943 1,216,907 {4,056}
Fines and forfeilures 279150 279.150 280,800 1,650
Investment earnings 200,000 200,000 194,900 {3,100}
Miszelkinaous 73,200 73,200 275,807 202,607
Total revenues 4,672,513 5,884,113 5,691,767 (192,344}
EXPENDITURES
General government:
Exgcutive:
Regular sakarias 625,794 425,794 574 580 501,214
Overtime salories 3,000 3.000 883 2117
Other employes benefits 192,116 197,114 186,016 13,100
Total salories. wages. and employea benefits 827,910 827,210 781,479 &6,431
Operating services 1,194,178 1,257,487 1,046,803 210.584
Maoterials ond supplias 85,566 85,570 75N ?.849
Travel and other 11,000 11.000 10122 871
Improvements and equipment 875,000 285,000 92.037 192,963
Total execulive 2,995,654 2,466,947 1,984,159 480.798
Infox maticn technology:
Regular salanes 124,538 124,538 100,078 24,460
Qvertime salarias 5000 £.000 4,203 797
Other employee benefils 33,704 33,704 22,248 11,458
Totdl sakaries, woges. and employee benefits 163,244 163,244 126,529 34,715
Qperating sevices 72,700 74,700 73.299 1,401
Materals and supplles . 18,100 18,100 14,413 3.487
Travel ant ather 13.000 11,000 4,339 6,661
Improvements and equipment 52,100 68,240 50,907 7,333
Total information technology 329,144 335,264 279,487 55,797
Economic davelopment:
Ragutor salorias 70,000 70,000 57,154 12.83%
Qther employee beneflls 14,906 14,506 10,550 4,354
Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits B4.906 84,504 67,714 17,192
COperating servicas 55,872 59.872 14,340 45,532
Materials and supplies 11,200 11,200 7,732 3,468
Travel and other 20,000 20,000 5992 14,008
Tolal economic developrnent 171.%78 175,978 95,778 80,200
City Court 244,461 244,441 242,997 1.464
Marshal 185,500 185,500 184,820 {1,320)
Civic center/cily hali:
Regulor salaried 161,605 161,605 113,242 47,643
COvertime salaries 10,000 10,000 8,062 1.938
Other employas beneflts 51,208 51,208 35,702 15,724
Tolol salores, wages, ond amployee tenafils 22283 222813 158,004 44,807
Opealing services 235,576 308.233 249,759 58,474
Matarials and supplies 81,400 81,600 85,156 14,444
Travel and ¢ther 6,000 4,000 2018 3982
Total civic canter/city hall 546,989 618,446 A74,93% 143,707
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{unavdited)
Actval Varlance with
Amcunts Final Budget
Budgetsd Amounts Budgatary Posllive
Original Fnal Bosls {Negative)
Flanning & zoning:
Reguiar salories 108,428 110,424 102,370 1254
Oveartime salorias 4,000 7,000 6,918 82
Other employee bensfits 35,325 45,325 35,439 {114}
Total sakaries, wagaes, and employes benefits 149,951 152,951 151,727 1,224
Operating services 48,428 49,926 40,924 9,000
Maleriak and supplies 10,900 10.900 10,832 58
Travel and other 10.000 4,00 4,454 4,534
Total plonning & zoning 219,275 202777 207,951 14,824
Inspections:
Regulor sakwias 32815 222815 222318 497
Overtime solaries 2,000 2,000 - 2.000
Othar employee benefits 52,660 52,660 52,592 &8
Tolal salaries, wages, ond employee benefits 277,475 277,475 274,910 2,565
Dperaling services 130.327 146,725 76,531 70,094
Matericls end supphes 18,500 18,500 14,424 2,074
Travel and other 15,000 15,000 10,767 4,233
Total inspections 441,202 457,700 378,632 79,068
Totol general govemment 5,134,307 4,707,313 3,852,773 854,540
Public safety:
Police:
Regutar salarfes 1,704,702 1,893,752 1,880.726 3026
Overtime salaries 160,000 250,000 247,269 12,731
Other amployee bansafits 578,254 392,387 543,494 48,893
Total sakries, wages, and employee benefils 2,442,958 2,736,139 2,671,489 64,650
Oparafing sevvices 255,058 256,591 215,934 40,655
Materials and supplies 240,000 253,250 189,504 43,744
Trave) and other 49,900 45,859 54,371 11,4688
Improvemeants and equipmeni 1,352,000 1,787,000 1,045,069 141,931
Total polce 4339918 4,498,839 4,174,369 322,470
Fie:
Regular sakmries 1,527,500 1,641,750 1,637,969 3781
Overtimo salaries 153,000 153.000 130.856 22,134
Other employee benefits 654,446 669,664 &36,5%1 33,073
Total solanes, wages, and employee benefits 2,324,946 2,454,414 24054246 58,968
Operating servicas : 217.856 226,436 184,314 42,122
Maltericgk and supplies 194,939 199.957 179.738 20219
Travel and ofher 88,100 88,100 77.584 10,534
Improvements and ecquipment 91.00C 653.084 504,794 40,290
Total fre 2,928,841 3.631,991 3,451,838 180,153
Street Bghling:
Operating services 244,000 269,000 255,351 13,449
Totol street lighting 244,000 269,000 255,351 13,649
Probation 87.021 87,021 91,394 14.373)
Total public safety 7,599,778 ' B,486,85) 7.974 952 511.89%
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[unauditeq)
Aclual Varionca with
Amounty Anacl Budget
Budgaied Amounis Budgetary Posilive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
Public works:
Administrafion:
Raguk salaries 360,426 360,426 345,325 15,101
Cvertime salares 5,000 5,000 2,838 2,144
Olher employee benefifs 88,613 88.413 79.245 9.348
Todal sakaries, woges, and employea benefits 454,030 454,03¢ 427,406 24433
Qperaling services £61,232 161,744 100,073 41,851
Mmalerlals and supplies 27,900 30,374 27,409 2,965
Travel and olher 15,000 15,000 10,956 4,044
Total administrotion 458171 401,157 545,864 25,293
Sireets:
Reguiar salarios 751,702 751,702 450,305 51,393
Overtime salaries 55,000 55,000 33.253 21,747
Other empioyes benafits 370,065 370.065 318,452 51,613
Total salories, wages, and employee benefits 1,174,747 1,174,767 1,042,014 134,753
Operating services 1,566,914 1,666,734 1.034.405 432,329
malterials and supplies 324,500 37,527 284,460 81,067
Trave!l and other 3.000 3.000 1,430 1.370
Improverments and equipmeant 3,580,000 4,096,271 1,755,296 2,340.975
Tolal sireals £.651,181 7.290,29% 4,097,805 3,190,494
Solid waste:
Regulor salarias 603,424 603,426 &0.484 1.942
Ovariima salaries 35,000 35,000 27,335 7,665
Othei employee benefits 245517 265,517 239,208 25,307
Total salaries, woges, and employee benetits 903,943 903,943 848,027 35916
Operaling services 207.021 215,034 182,160 32,874
Maleriak and supplies 323, 500 345217 199,287 145,930
Travel ond other 3.000 3,000 245 2755
Improvements and equipment 237.500 412,672 410,846 1,826
Total solid wasle 1,674,964 1,879,846 1,860,565 219,301
Repalr shap:
Reguiar salarias 340,253 340,243 32811 12.072
Owerfirme salaries 12,000 12,600 7.808 4,192
Othver smployee benefits 117.518 117,518 103,981 7,537
Total satories, woges. ond employee benalits 449,781 449.781 445,980 23,801
Operaling sérvices 25,982 25,982 18.412 7.570
Materials and supplies £0,500 60,500 48,980 11,520
Travel and other 3.000 6,691 5319 1,372
Total repalr shop 589,253 562,954 518,691 44,243
Animal Controk
Reqular salaries 81,024 82,224 81,544 £80
Overtlrne slaries 10,000 12,800 12,441 ox iy
Qther amployes benelils 32.030 32.030 30.593 1,437
Totdl salaries, wages, and employee benefils 123,054 127,054 124,598 7,456
Oparating sexvices KL XA @007 31,407 8,500
Matericls and supplies 23,250 20,950 20,892 L]
Travel and other 7.500 7.500 4.551 2949
Improverments and equipmant 22,000 20,300 20,266 34
Total anirmoi control 213816 215,711 01,714 13,997
Tolal public warks 9,757,395 10.609,987 7,046,637 3,543,348
Tolal expenditures 22,491,480 23504,151 18,874,364 4.529.767
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juraudited) .
Aclual Varlance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Anal Rasis {(Negative)
Excess (deficiency] of revenuas
over {under) expendihaes 17,818,967} {17.220,038) {13,182.597} 4,737,441
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transters in 14,564,826 14,564,824 14,517,434 47,390
Transfers out [217,735) {217,734) (138.734) [79.000}
Total other finaneing sounces ond uses 14,347,670 14,347,090 14,378,700 {31610}
Net change in fund balonce [3.471.877| {3.572.948) 1.194,103 4,749,051
Fund balances - beginning 8,705,671 8,705,671 8.705.671 -

§ 5233794 3 5132723 § 9,501,774 3 476905

Fund balances - anding

See occompanying independent ouditors’ report 70
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{unaudited)
Actual Varance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeied Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Flral Basls {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes 3 2,558,925 $ 2.556,925 $ 2,486,102 3 (70.823)
Investment eamings 60,000 60,000 13,204 (46,796
Total revenues 2,615,925 2,616,925 2,499,306 {117,619
EXPENDITURES
General govemment:
Collection and adminisiralive 23.000 28,000 27,293 707
Totd expenditures 28,000 28,000 27.293 707
Exess of revenues over espenditures 2,588,925 2,588,925 2,472,013 {116,912}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transters out (4172872} (4172872} {4.172,872) -
Total other financing sources and uses {4.172.872) (4,172,872} (4.172,872) -
Net change in fund balance {1.583,947) (1,583,947} (1,700,859} {116,212)
Fund balances - beginning 1,991,865 1,991,865 1,991,845 -
Fund balances - ending 3 407,918 3 407218 $ 291006 3 [116,212)
e - —} .- -]

See accompanying independent auditors’ repo.
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lunoudited)
Actual Variance with
Amounts Anal Budget
Budgetad Amounts Budgeiary Positive
Qriglnal Anal Basis {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 383537 3 3835379 $ 3720148 3 (106233
Investment eamings 40,000 $0.000 15,83¢ [44,181
Total ravenves 3.895,37% 3,895,379 3.744,985 {150,394
EXPENDITURES
Generd govemment;
Collection and administrative 35,000 35,000 34,523 477
Total expendilures 35,000 35,000 34,523 477
Exess of revanues over expenditures 3,840,379 3.860,379 3,710,462 {149,917}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers oul {5.444,325 5,444,325 __{5.434.490 7.835
Total olher finoncing sources and uses {5.444.325 5,444,325 5,435,4 7.835
Nel change in fund balance {1.583,246} (1.583,946) {1.724.028) [142,082)
Fund balances - beginning 2,233,987 2,233,987 2,233,987 -
Fund bakances - ending b3 850,041 $ 450,041 5 507959 $  [142,089)

See accompanying independent audilors’ report.
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1990 Sales Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actuol on Budgetary Basls
For the Year Ended Septembxer 30, 2009

{unaudited)
Actual Varlance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgated Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis {Negailve)
REVENUES
Taxes 3 2.556,925 $ 2,556,925 $ 2,484,102 $ {70,823
Investment eamings 50,000 50,000 17,504 {32,094
Total revenues 2,606,925 2,606,925 2,504,005 (102,719
EXPENDITURES
General government:
Collection ond administrative 24,000 24,000 23,294 706
Total expenditures 24,000 24,000 23,294 706
Exess of revenues over expandituras 2,582,925 2,582,925 2,480,712 {102,213}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out {2.582.925 2,582,925 __{2,582.925) -
Total other financing sources and uses t2,582.925‘ 2,582,925) 2.582,925) -
Net change In fund balance - - {102,213) (102,213}
Fund bakances - beginning 414214 414,216 414,916 -
Fund balances - ending 3 414918 $ 414916 $ 312703 $ (102213

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes fo Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009
{Unavdited)

Budget ond Budgetary Accounting

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financicl

statements:

{1)

(2)

(3)

{4)
{5)

(6)

(7)

)

The Treasurer's Office compiles for the Mayor esfimales of revenues and requests for
appropriations of the annual budget.

During August, ihe Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing the following Ociober 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

A public hearing is then conducted, after proper official joumal nofification, o obtain
taxpayer comments,

Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through possage of an ordinance.

The budget ordinance is sfruciured such that revenues are budgeted by source, and
appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure.
Budgetary control is exercised at the departmental code level, with the excepfion of
salaries, ragular and overtime, which are at the line itermn level, or by projects, and the
City Courl and Probation {total combined). and City Marshal deparfments, which are
budgeted al the department level. The Council may revise or amend the budgst af its
discretion during legally convened sessions. For the year ended September 30, 2009,
amendments were made to the budget, including salary and benefit accounts to
appropriate for the change in the police department and fire depariment pay plans;
and grant revenve and expenditure accounts to account for grants received through
cul the year; and various other accounts to appropriate open purchase orders as of the
end of the prior year,

Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in the accompanying financial
statements includes the General Fund and those special revenue funds which are
included in the annual operating budget. [19468 Sales Tax, 1985 Sales Tax, 1970 Sales Tax,
Parks and Recreation, and Section 8 Vouchers). Annual operaling budgets are not
prepared for the D.A.R.T. Grant Program, Central Shop Construction, and 120 funds, but
rather these funds are budgeted on a project basis. The capital budget ordinances
which encompass the capital projects funds present curwlative as opposed to annual
budget amounts and thus budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the
accompanying financial statemenis for these funds. Budgetary contral for the debt
service funds is achieved through general bond indenture provisions,

All budgets are adopted on a baosis substanticlly consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles [GAAP). Appropriations which are not expended lapse of year
end.

The City is legally required to prepare annual operafing budgets for the Hecliic System,
Water Systern, Sewer System, Ruston Airport Authorty, Ambulance Fund, Workmen's
Compensation, General Insurance, and Purchasing/Warehouse Funds. The City is not,
however, required to present an actual-to-budget comparison for the enterprise and
internal service funds.
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA
Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009
{Unaudited)

Excess of Expenditures over Budget

For those funds for which a budget 1o actual comparison was made, actud expenditures on a
budgetury basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a code level basis as follows:

Actual ona
budgetary  Negative
Eund Budget basis varance
Genergl Fund:
General Government:
City Court and Probation 331,482 334,37 {2.909)
Marshal 185,500 186,820 (1.320}

The unfavorable variance in City Court and Probation is due to an increase in witness fees paid
to officers and dn increase in salary for the City Court part fime employee. The unfavorable

varance in Marshal is due fo an underestimate of the budget amounts relating to salary
accruals,
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Combining Fund Statements
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Nonmdjor Govemmental Funds
$peclal Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used for specific revenues that are legally reshicted io
expenditures for paricular purposes.

Ruston Parks and Recrealion Board - This fund accounts for the receipts and subsequent
expendiures of the City of Ruston Park and Recreation Program.

D.A.R.T. Geant Program - This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditures of a
State of Lovisiona Emergency Shetter Grant Program.

Seclion & Housing Assistance Paymenls Programs - These funds account for receipt of
Federal Funds and the payment of Housing Assistance Paymenfs to qualifying rental property
owners.

Capital Projects Fund

Capital projects funds are used to gccount for the ocquisiion and construction of mcnor
capital facililies other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Central Shop Construction = This fund accounts for receipts and disbursements of the
proceeds from the issuance of Cerificates of Indebtedness Series 1993, designated for the
construction of a central repair shop.

Sewer LCDBG Grant = This fund accounts for receipts and disbhursements of a grant received
from the Loulsiana Community Development Block Grant for sewer improvements,

Deabf Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest from governmeniat resources.
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Internal Service Funds

Intemal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, and to other
governmeni, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Warkmen's Compensation Self-lnsurance Fund - This fund accumulates resources to finance
employee workmen's compensalion injuries and claims.

General Self-Insurance Fund - This fund cccumulates resources to finance claims and
jiudgments arising from empioyee health insurance and other exposures.

Purchasing-Warehouse Fund - This fund coordinates purchasing and warshousing operations
for all applicable funds.

General and Auto Llability Fund - This fund accumulates resources to finance general and
avto labily premiums and claims.
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ASSETS
Cumen! Assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
invesimentfs
Receivables. net
Due from other funds
Prepaid iterns
Totol curvent Qssets
Noncunent Asseds:
Capila! Assets:
Buildings
Equipment
Less accumuloted depreciation
Tokal noncwrent assets
Tolol assets

LIABLITIES
Current Labilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued licbitfies
Due ta other funds
Clairms and judgments
Total cunent liabiltes
Noncurent Uabilities:
Compensated absances
Total noncurent lighiities
Tokal habilities

NET ASSETS
Invasted in capital assets, net of related debt
Unresticled

Total nal assets

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUMNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Tolal
Workmen's General Purchasing/ Gerere! 4 Internal Service
Comipensation Insvrance ‘Waorehouvio Aute Labllty Funds
$ 285,292 § 498,208 ¥ 63270 3 156,251 3 1,003,021
479.232 1,611,925 - - 2.091.157
- 3,075 - 3075
- . . 2,972 9972
764,524 2,113,208 63,270 166,223 3,107,225
- - 13,0680 - 13,080
- - 48,123 - 48,123
- - {57,309) - {57.309)
- - 3894 ~ 3.594
3 764,524 $2913.208 § 47184 b ] 166,223 $ EXEANIL
3 3,841 3 134 3 1.414 $ 383 % 5829
- - B.573 100,000 108,573
- 182 487 - 669
301,258 157,133 - - 438,371
05.09¢ 157,506 10.474 100.383 373.462
- - 8,547 - 8.547
- - B.547 - 8,547
X5,099 157,508 19,021 100.383 582,009
- - 3874 - 3.8%4
457,425 1,955,702 44,249 45,840 2.525.214
] 459,435 230, $ 43143 3 45,840 3 2,529,110

The accomponying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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CITY CF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

COPERATING REVENUES
Pretmiums paid by refired amployees
Chorges to other funds
Retiree drug subsidy
Other income
Tolal operating revenuas

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Services:
Salaries, wages and employes beneafils
Operofing services
smMatenals ond supplies
Travel and ofher
Depreciotion
Tolal cost of senvices

Claims
Insurance premiums
Total operaling expensas

Operating income {loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investmant earnings
income {ioss) betore tromsters
Transters in
Change innet assets
Totol net ossats - beginning
Totcd net assels - ending

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2007

Tolal
Workmen's Genesal Pur¢hasing/ Genorol & Inlemal Service

Compeniation Insurance Warshouvie Aute Lioblilty Funds
- $ 264,398 - - $ 254,398
L 240000 2,280,929 § 225,000 5 351,499 3.097.428
- 32162 - - 32,162
- $73 - - 973
240,000 2.578,462 225.000 351,499 3.394.96)
. - 188,350 - 188,350
- . 14118 - 14118
- - 7.506 - 1,506
- - 1,123 - 1,123
- - 1,444 - 1,444
- - 2,553 - 212,553
299.044 1,844,356 - 164,681 - 2,308,103
132,119 412,746 - 236,313 781,178
431,185 2.257.102 212,553 400,994 3.301.834
{191,185) 321,380 12,447 (4%, 495] 93.127
16,830 23,882 1,206 238 52,156
{174.355) 355,242 13.653 149,257) 145,283
{174,355) 355,242 13.653 {49.257) 145,283
$33,780 1,600,460 34.490 115.097 2,383,827
3 459,425 31,955,702 § 43143 3 45,840 3 2529110

The accompanying notes are an integral port of the financial statements.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Cash flows from aperating activities:
Receipts Irom operations
Poyments to suppliers
Poymenls 1o amployees
Claims
Other receipls
Nat cash provided by (used In} operafing activilies

Cash Bows Wom investing octiviiies:
Praceads from sakes and maturlties of investments
Purchases on invesiments
Interast on invesimants
Nei cash provided by {used in} investing activities

Nei increcsa [decrease) in cash ond cash equiveiants

Cash gnd cash equivalenis - bagirning af year
Cash and eash squivolents - end of year

Recanelalion of operaling Income (kas) to nel cash
pravidad by {used in) operafing activilies
Operating Income (loss}

Adjustmenls to reconclle operafing income [loss} 1o net
cash providad by (used in) operaling aciivitles:
Depreciation and amadization

{increass) Cecrente In assety:
Raceivables
Prepold itemns
Dua o oiher funds
Incraase |Decrease) in ligbiifies:
Accounls paryabia
Accrved Fablities
Due o other funds
Compemated atsences
Claims and podgments

Tolal adusiments

Nat cath provided by (used in) operating oclivities

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA

Total
Workmen's Generol Purchasing/ Getsral £ Internol Sarvice
Compenation Insurance Worehouse Aubo Uablfity Funds
3 240,141 $2.545.126 $ 225408 P AsLaey $ 3.352.394
{130.427] {412.752) {21,485} {237.243) (802,131)
- - [200,310) - {200.310)
95,532] [1,855.544) - (64.481) {2.015,757)
- 33,135 - - 33,138
14.002 307,965 3,809 49,555 377.331
- B46,871 . - 844,871
113.743} {1.377.521) - - [1.391,464)
16,830 33.882 1,204 8 52,156
2,887 (496,768 1208 238 [472.437)
16,889 (184,303} 5015 49,793 {115.306}
268,403 535,011 58,255 104.458 1,118,127
285,292 3 498.208 $ 43270 3 156,251 3 1,003,021
3 [191.183) 3 32130 $ 12447 ] [47.495) 3 §3.127
+ - 1,448 - 1,444
141 {201} 150 - 10
- - - {1.33Y [1.333)
1.492 {189 784 383 2,473
- . 208 100,000 100,208
- 182 472 - &54
- . {12,158} - {12.158)
203.534 {11,188) - - 192,344
205,187 {11395} {8.438) $9.650 284,204
3 14,002 LR A L 3,80% $ 49,555 377.331

The occompanying noles cre an integm! part of the inoncial statemants,
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Indvwidual Fund Schedules
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CIY OF RUSTON, LOUSIANA
RUSTON PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2009

Actual Varlance Whh
Amounts Final budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Poshive
Originai Final__ . Basls {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 330,000 $ 330,000 $ 471,648 $ 141,648
Charges for services 130,000 130,000 111,145 (18,855)
Investment eamings 9,500 9.500 8,209 (1,291}
Miscellangous 5.000 5,000 10,324 5324
Total reveruas 474,500 474 500 01,324 126,824
ENPENDITURES
Current:
Recreation:
Salones, wages and employee benefils 500,657 503.657 476,166 27,491
Operating services 331123 BdLen 255,522 76,099
Materials and supplies 29,000 22,000 23,708 5292
Travel and other 10,000 10,000 9,344 636
improvements ond equipment 428,000 235,239 144,565 88,674
Total expenditures 1,098,780 1,109,517 911,325 198,192
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures [624,2680) {635,017} [309,999) 325018
OTHER AINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfars in 427,455 427 455 423,155 4,300)
Total other financing sources {uses) 427,455 427,455 423,155 4,300)
Net change in fund balance (196,825) [207,542) 113.156 320,718
Fund balances - baeginning 446,786 444,786 444,786 -
Fund balances - ending $ 249,961 } 239.224 $ 559.942 3 Ixn7e
et

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF RUSTON. LOUISIANA
SECTION 8 VOUCHER HOUSING

SCHEDULE OF REVENIIES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

REVENUES
Intergovemmental
nvestment scmings
Misceflaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cumrent:
General Governmeant:
Salarkes, wages and employes benefits
Operating services
Malertols and supplies
Travel and other
Tota expandives
Excess of revenues over expenditures

Net ¢change in fund balance
Fund balonces - beginning

Fund balances - ending

The occompanying noles are an integral part of the fincanclal statements.

Variance With
Finol Budget
pudgeted Amounts Actusl Pasitiva
Original Final Amounis {Negative)

$ 980,000 1 280,000 3 998946 3 16,945
35,000 35,000 3.873 {31,127

- - 4,425 4 425
1,015,000 1,015,000 1,005,244 {%.758)
105,411 105,411 64,930 40,481
957,464 1,207,444 1,163,033 44,431

2,700 2,700 1.927 7,773

7.000 7,000 1,060 5,940

1,079,575 1,329,575 1,230,950 98,625
{64,575 (314,575] (275,706) 88,869
{64,575) (314,575) [225,704) 88,849
1,158,757 1,158,757 1,158,757 -

$ 1,094,182 3 844,182 § 93305 $ 88,869
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Douglas A. Brewer, LLC
Certified Public Accountant

500 North Trenton
P.O. Box 1250
Ruston, LA 71273-1250
Phone: (318) 255-8244 Fax: (318} 255-8245

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements

Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of
Ruston, Louisiana

I have andited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ruston, Lowisiana (the City) as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements and have issued my report thereon dated March 19, 2010. I conducted my audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plapning and performing my audit, [ considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City"s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funciions, 1o prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, recond, process, or report financizl data reliably
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the City’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be preveated
or detected by the City’s intermal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented
or detected by the City’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Honorable Mavor and Board of Aldermen of
Ruston, Louisiana
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, [ performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which eould have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The
results of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as item 09-1.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Aldermen of the
City of Ruston, Louisiana, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties, Under
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is to be distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public
document.

—Doud-‘-dﬁ- ﬁ-. BW’ Lec

March 19, 2010
Ruston, Louisiana
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Douglas A. Brewer, LLC

Certified Public Accountant

500 North Trenton
P.O. Box 1250
Ruston, LA 71273-1250
Phone: (318) 255-8244 Fax: (318) 255-8245

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To

Each Major Program And On Internal Control Over Compliance In
Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of
Ruston, Louisiana

Compliance

1 have audited the compliance of the City of Ruston, Louisiana (the City) with the types of compliance
requirernents described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2009,
The City’s major federal programs are identified in the surmmary of auditors’ resnits section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on my audit.

I conducted my sudit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the Urited States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. [
believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In my opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2009. However, the results of my
auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as iterm 09-1.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The marnagement of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing my audit, I considered the City’s intemnal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine my
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance.
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A comtrol deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelthood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is 2 significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

My consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies i internal control over
compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

I have audited the financial statements of the governmenital activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated March 19,
2010. My audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and isnota
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and in my opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intendad solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Aldermen of the
City of Ruston, Louisiana, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is to be distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public
document.

’DauaJ#\ A. EW, L

Ruston, Louisiana
March 19, 2010
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City of Ruston, Louisiana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For The Year Ended September 30, 2009

Grant Title

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers

Pass through Louisiana Office of Community Development:
D.AR.T. CDBG Program .
Total United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

Department of Homeland Security:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Hazard Mitigation Grant (GOHSEF)

Total Department of Homefand Security

United States Department of Justice:
Pasgs through Lincoln Parish Police Jury
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
Total United States Department of Justice

Heaith Resources and Services Administration:
Department of Health and Human Services
Pass through Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals
Bioterrorism Grant

Federal Aviation Administration:
Airport Improvement Progtam

United States Environmental Protection Agency:
Pass through Louisians Department of Environmental Quality:
Construction Grants for Wastewater Treatment Works

Total Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards,

5

Federal
CFDA

Number

14.871

14.231

97.036
97.039

16.738

93.889

20.106

66.418

Federnl
Eernditures

$ 931,954

22,305
1,004,259

96,545
61,732
158,277

6,239
6,239

9,547

13,728

749,338

5 1541388
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City of Ruston, Louisiana
Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards
For The Year Ended September 30, 2009

General

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Ruston, Louisiana and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting with the exception of the Construction Grants for Wastewater Treatment
Works, and the Airport Improvement Program, which are presented on the accrual basis
of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements,

Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in this schedule, the City of Ruston, Louisiana,
provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows:

Federal Amount
CFDA Provided To
Propram Title Number Subrecipients
D.A.R.T. CDBG Program 14.231 § 22,305
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City of Ruston, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For The Year Ended September 30, 2009

Summary of Audit Results

1.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic government financial
statements of the City of Ruston, Louisiana.

No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Report on Compliance And On Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting
Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government
Auditing Standards and on the Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To
Each Major Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB
Circular A-133.

One instance of noncompliance was disclosed during the audit, which would be required to
be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each
Major Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB Circular
A-133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of
Ruston, Louisiana expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs. One
instance of noncompliance was disclosed.

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Sections 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reported in this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included the Department of Heusing and Urban
Development Voucher Program, CFDA No. 14.857; and the United States Environmental
Protection Agency pass-through the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality —
Construction Grants for Wastewater Treatment Works, CFDA No. 66.418.

The threshold for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Ruston, Louisiana does not qualify to be a low-risk auditee.
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City of Ruston, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For The Year Ended September 30, 2009

Findings And Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Programs Andit

09-1 Section 8 - Signed Information R¢lease Forms

Condition:
During the testwork for the Section 8 program, it was found that four of thirty-one sampled family
files did not contain the necessary federal information release forms that are required to be kept by
PHAs in accordance with the eligibility requirements found in the Compliance Supplement.

Criteria:
According to the 2009 A-133 Compliance Supplement, section E:1:a, part of the eligibility
requirement for PHAS is to have the tenant family sign a information, documentation and income
verification release form before acceptance into the program and every fifteen months afterward as
the previous release expires.

Effect:
When the PHA fails to adhere to the requirements set forth by the governing agency in the
Compliance Supplement, they put the program at risk o having its Federal funding revoked.

Recommendation:
City of Ruston Section 8 program should make sure that ali tenants who come m for new

admission and annval recertification have current signed information release forms in the family
file.

Response:
The City of Ruston Section 8 Program assures that an information release form will be signed by

all tenants who are in the process of being admitted into the program and tenants who are having
an annual recertification.



g

City of Ruston, Louisiana
Summary Schedule of Prior Findings
For The Year Ended September 30, 2009

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No findings were reported for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.

Management Lettey

A management letter, dated March 20, 2009, was issued for the year ended September 30,
2008.

Utility Billing Rates

In performing tests of the utility billing system, it was noted that the rate charged for residential
electric usage over 800 Kilowatt hours (kwh) was not changed from the winter rate to the summer
rate. This condition was noted in customer bills tested for the months June through September,
2008. The condition was the result of a manuwal charge code not being changed for the
appropriate period.

Status:
This item has been cleared.





